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Narrative Report 

Introduction 

Organisational overview and external environment 

Belfast City Council remains the largest of Northern Ireland's 11 local authorities, serving a population of 
339,579 residents, as well as the thousands of people who travel to the city to work, study and visit each 
day. 

With a gross budgeted expenditure of £192.4m million in 2017/18, Belfast City Council's 2,384 
employees, led by 60 councillors across 10 electoral areas, carry out six principal roles: 

> a civic leadership role to ensure a better quality of life for our citizens; 
> provision of a number of services and facilities including planning, parks and leisure, refuse 

and recycling and community services; 
> promoting the arts, tourism, community and economic development; 
> regulating and licensing activities relating to environmental health, consumer protection, 

building and public safety; 
> a representative role on a number of bodies and boards, including education and health; 

and 
> a consultative role in relation to functions conducted by other government bodies and 

agencies on issues such as planning, water, roads and housing. 

With our role in leading community planning in Belfast we have published the Belfast Agenda 2017-
2035, outlining our priorities for the City which will require collaboration with key partners to ensure 
delivery of these ambitions for the City. 

The key services delivered by the Council are outlined below under our Operational Model and the 
key objectives of the Council are outlined below under Strategic Performance. The key deliverables 
for year ended 31 March 2018 reflect the priorities articulated by local people and relate to the 
council's functions as both a civic leader and service provider. 
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Operational Model 

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the standard 
expected by its ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant committees for approval 
regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost This helps the Council understand 
how much money is required and, taking account of other sources of income, what 'rate' needs to be 
set for the city to raise the required money. 

The Council's budgeted sources of income for the year ended 31 March 2018 were as follows: 

This budgeted income went towards the delivery of the following in the year ended 31 March 2018: 

Service> th;:Jt cer·erate income 

Planning and Building Control 

Street cleaning ;md public toilets 
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Governance 

The work of Belfast City Council is overseen by the committee structure outlined below and detailed further In our Governance 
Statement on pages 12- 24. This Annual Governance Statement for 2017/1 8 h lghlights the Council's governance 
arrangements during the year and how significant governance issues are being addressed and actlons Implemented. A 
programme management framework is in place to manage both revenue and capital streams of activity for the Council. 
Directors and Members have oversight In accordance with the terms of reference for the relevant Committee as well as finance 
reports covering all aspects of Council expenditure being presented to Committee on a quarterly basis. The committee 
structure is as follows and In addition a Brexit Committee has been established and is responsible for researching, monitoring 
and reviewing the financial, resource or operational impact upon the Council and the district as a result of the UK's leaving the 
European Union and for making recommendations to Council on such issues (or to the relevant Standing Committee where 
appropriate). The first meeting took place In August 2018: 

C\'l'l Growth and Regeneration Committee 

Ucensing Committee 
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Strategic Performance 

The strategic performance of the Council is incorporated in the Belfast City Council's Corporate Plan 
2017-21, which includes the Improvement Plan. The Belfast Agenda is published on the Council's 
website and outlines the Council's ambitions for the City by 2035 as well as the immediate priorities 
for: 

)> Growing the economy 
)> Living here 
)> City Development 
)> Working and learning 

The Council outlines its priorities within the Corporate Plan 2017-21. These priorities cascade from 
the longer term outcomes identified in the Council's Community Plan (Belfast Agenda). These 
priorities are based upon extensive external and internal analysis, including key socio-economic data, 
analysis of the plans and strategies impacting the city and its communities, performance information 
and political engagement. 

The Council has also incorporated six key improvement objectives included within the Improvement 
Plan to ensure continuous improvement in the exercise of the Council's functions and alignment with 
the work the Council is doing to formulate the priorities of the Belfast Agenda. 

These six key objectives are: 

)> Build the city's position as a magnet for Foreign Direct Investment 

)> Make Belfast a great place to do business by supporting entrepreneurs and business starts 

)> Deliver an integrated approach to employment and skills 

)> Design and deliver programmes to address health inequalities in the city 

)> Deliver the integrated tourism strategy to increase numbers of leisure and business tourists 

)> Deliver city centre regeneration and investment projects 

An annual performance assessment of progress against these objectives is contained within the 
Corporate Performance Assessment Report to include details of the Council's performance against 
statutory performance indicators set by the Department. 
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Financial Statements 

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2018 is as set out in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and it's financial position is as set out in the 
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement. 

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2018 (the Code) and the 
Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 05/2018. lt is the purpose of this 
foreword to explain~ in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in relation to the Council. 

This Statement of Accounts explains Belfast City Council's finances during the financial year 2017/18 
and its financial position at the end of that year. lt follows approved accounting standards and is 
necessarily technical in parts. 

Group Accounts 

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group 
financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
Belfast City Council have prepared group financial statements for the financial year 17/18 to include 
Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Limited ( BWUH} and Belfast City Council's contribution to Beltel 
LLP in relation to the redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Building. The results of Beltel LLP are 
included in the group financial statements and the accounting period of Beltel LLP is now aligned with 
that of Belfast City Council, 31 March. During the year a wholly owned company, Belfast Gasworks 
Management Co Ltd was created on 27 October 2017 for the management of the letting of an area 
within the Ormeau Gasworks site. As the results of this company are not deemed material to Belfast 
City Council accounts they are not included in the group financial statements. 

The Movement in Reserves Statement 

This Statement, as set out on page 35, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held 
by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' {i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services' line 
shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Summary {CIES). These are different from the statutory 
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net 
Increase/Decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund 
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
The group movement in reserves statement on page 111 includes the reserves of BWUH limited, 
contributing to a decrease of£3.7k on the Group General Fund. 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement, as set out on page 36, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from 
taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be 
different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The group comprehensive income and expenditure statement on page 112 includes the 
consolidated income and expenditure of BWUH Ltd. 

Tha Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 37, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the 
Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by 
the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of 
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, 
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use 
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(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay 
debt). The second category of reserves are those that the authority is not able to use to provide 
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for 
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services 
if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and fun~ing basis under regulations' . 

The Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the 
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of 
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations 
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services 
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been 
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers 
of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. The group cashflow statement on page 114 includes the 
cash and cash equivalents of BWUH Ltd, Gas pension Fund and the Council's interests in Beltel LLP. 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

The resourcing of the Council's activities is outlined in the Annual Report, demonstrating the funding 
available and what services this funding provided for 2017/18. 

There have been changes to the way we report our financial performance on the delivery of these 
services in our financial statements. This change is mainly due to the requirement for Councils to 
now report financial performance in line with their decision making structure and the introduction of 
the Expenditure and Funding analysis, as set out in Note 2. 

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how the 
funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rates, fees and charges) for the year has 
been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the 
Council in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision-
making purposes between the Council's committees. Income and expenditure accounted for under 
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Financial performance 

Fbr the year ended 31 March 2018, the Council increased its Gkneral Fund by £3.4m . The 
movement in the General Fund is mainly due to the under spend in the year ended 31 March 2018. 
The Budget plans form part of the Revenue Estimates and in 2017/18 the total net expenditure budget 
for the Council was set at £154.8m. 

The Council's budget was increased by £0.7m of prior year finalisation of district rates. The Council 
reported £0.4m under spend on service delivery at the year end. Performance against budget for 
each of the Committees is continuously monitored throughout the year. 

This performance is reported to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on a quarterly basis. 
The overall position for the year ended 31 March 2018 is mainly due to additional unbudgeted income 
being received during the year e.g. government supported scheme, fluctuating waste disposal costs 
and underspends in employee costs due to pending structural reviews and ongoing organisational 
development. 

The Cost of Services on Continuing Operations of £166.8m, as reported in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost of providing services in 
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addition to the amount to be funded from taxation. The total net expenditure reported in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is £17.6m. This net expenditure is reported 
under our Committee structure and our Comprehensive and Expenditure Statement for 2016/17 has 
been restated accordingly. 

Borrowings 

For the 2017/18 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £174m. This is based on the 
Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In conjunction with the 
Council's Capital Financing Requirement of £94.3m, this ensures that the Council only borrows for 
capital purposes. During the year, the Council repaid external loans of £4.84m. The Council 
borrowed £5m to fund ongoing capital projects. At 31 March 2018, the total amount outstanding on 
external loans was £36.8m, of this total £0.4m represents the outstanding debt of the former Belfast 
Corporation Services which is now the responsibility of the Northern Ireland Housing Executive, and 
on whose behalf the Council is administering the loans. 

Capital Expenditure 

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes 
allocations of £5.5m to fund capital expenditure. Expenditure on capital projects during the year 
amounted to £22m, the most significant spend was on Andersonstown Regeneration £4m, 
Olympia/Windsor Regeneration £4m, Robinson Centre £2.8m, Pitches Strategy £2.3m, Fleet 
Replacement Programme £1.8m and Tropical Ravine £1. 7m. 

There were significant impairments during the year, as detailed on page 81. These impairments have 
arisen due firstly to a reduction in value of the Gasworks Site by £4.4m. This is due to a large repairs 
expenditure in 2017/18 which impacted the discounted cash flow model used to value this investment 
property. In addition, expenditure during the year of £563k for the Connswater Community Greenway 
has been re-measured to £1 as it is accounted for as a Community Asset following the annual valuation 
as at March 2018 by Land and Property Services. 

The former Andersonstown Leisure Centre (net book value £5.18m), Clonduff Drive Community Centre 
and Playing Fields (combined net book value £194k) were demolished to enable the construction of 
new sports facilities. 

Strategy and Resource allocation 

When setting the district rate for 2017/18 consideration was given to the following key financial factors 
for the Council: 

)> The main uncontrollable cost risk to the Council in the medium term, is the impact of 
externally imposed increases to the Council's pay bill, such as the nationally negotiated pay 
awards, the introduction of the apprenticeship levy and the effect of the national living wage. 
These combined with inflation levels at 3% exert financial pressure on the District Rate which 
are beyond the Council's control 

)> The Council will face significant year on year increases in costs in several areas such as 
waste disposal costs where the arc21 residual waste contract and interim arrangements 
become operational, increased resources to deliver priorities under the Belfast Agenda and 
continued investment in large scale capital projects such as the Leisure Transformation 
Programme 

)> The Council's income streams are under risk with the uncertain political environment which 
could have an impact on both EU and Central Government funding. Work is ongoing with 
Land and Property Services (LPS) and the Institute of Revenues Ratings and Valuations 
(IRRV) to provide assurances on the rates base in this challenging economic landscape 
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}:> The Council continues to develop its Efficiency Programme through a targeted work stream of 
activities delivering savings of £2m in 17/1 Band savings of £3m in 2018/19 which have 
already been factored into the budget setting process and should help minimise the burden 
on the ratepayer of the cost pressures highlighted above. 

Outlook 

The Council is fully aware that it is operating in an increasingly challenging economical and political 
environment to deliver business as usual as well as our ambitions for the City under the Belfast 
Agenda. The Council strives to deliver at the highest of standards and these efforts have been 
recognised in the many awards achieved by the Council in the year ended 31 March 2018, including: 

}:> Northern Ireland Local Government Association (NILGA) Award for Best Local Authority 
Elected Member Initiative for its joint member-officer Women's Leaders Programme 

}:> Winner of the Good Governance category at the inaugural Public Finance Innovation Awards 
hosted by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) for Belfast City 
Council's leadership in spearheading the city's digital reboot programme, Super Connected 

}:> The Council was awarded the Overall NI Family Friendly Employer of the Year 2017 for its 
staff support 

}:> Chief Executive Suzanne Wylie awarded the 'Public Sector Director of the Year' accolade at 
the prestigious Institute of Directors (laD) NI First Trust Bank Director of the Year Awards. 

}:> Belfast Waterfront rose above stiff competition to be named the UK's Best Event Space 2017 
as the only venue in Northern Ireland with the size and flexibility to host large scale 
international events accommodating up to 5,000 delegates. 

The Council seeks out opportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the City, adopting 
innovative approaches to delivering services and working in partnership to ensure the City optimises 
its resources to deliver on its six key objectives. A few of the current initiatives the Council is currently 
developing are outlined below: 

}:> Smart City Framework- the Council adopt a leadership role to establishing a City Data 
Platform, a Smart Belfast portal which is a critical resource for a modern Belfast to stage 
challenges, promote and share learning and attract investment. This will be the foundation for 
the rates forecasting model and Planning Growth tool to encourage innovative solutions for 
increasing economic growth for the City. 

}:> 1 OORC - Belfast is the only city in Ireland, and one of only five in the UK to have been 
selected from over 1,000 applicant cities to participate in the 100 Resilient Cities Network-
pioneered by The Rockefeller Foundation (1 OORC). The aim of this network is to partner with 
cities to build resilience to the shocks and stresses of the 21st Century, share international 
challenges and lessons learned, and to build a global community of urban resilience experts. 
The funding available has allowed Belfast to recently appoint a Commissioner for Resilience 
who reports directly to the Chief Executive and will work with our council and our partners to 
build our city's ability to plan for and manage any threats and vulnerabilities that we have as a 
city, such as weaknesses in our economy, segregation, poor infrastructure, risks of flooding 
and cyber attack. 
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}> City Deal- the City deal model is the UK Government's innovative strategy for building 
stronger urban and regional growth via smarter, more localised and growth focused 
investment decision-making. lt is an exciting initiative collaborating with our neighbouring 
councils, NI Executive and UK Government to deliver an integrated economic growth 
programme. An initial proposal has been developed which sets out an ambition for up to 
£1bn investment in the city-region through a 10-year programme which could act as catalyst 
to lever substantial private sector investment across the region and to support economic 
resilience. 

}> The PEACE IV Programme - is a cross-border initiative designed to support peace and 
reconciliation in Northern Ireland and the border region. Funding of £8.79m has been 
awarded from the European Union PEACE IV Programme managed by the Special EU 
Programmes Body (SEUPB) and also includes funding from the Executive Office in Northern 
Ireland and the Department of Rural and Community Development in Ireland and will be used 
by Belfast City Council to improve the lives of children and young people, build positive 
relations and shared spaces across the city. 

These initiatives enhance the Council's opportunities to develop services, deliver on our key 
objectives for the City and grow the City to make it a leading destination to live, work, visit and invest. 
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Statement ol the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities lor the Slatement of Accounts 

The Council 's Responsibilities 
Under Section I of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a councl shall make arrangements for the proper 
odm·nistrotion of its financial affairs. A council shall designate on officer of the councl as its chief financial officer and these 
arrangements shall be conied out under the superv;sion of ils chief fcnonciol officer. 

Under Regulation 7 ol the Local Government (Accounts and Aud't) Regulaforu (Northern Ire and) 2015 the Counc·l. or a Comm·ttee. is 
required by resolution. to approve the accounts. 

These accoun Is were approved by the Chie f Financial Officer on 29 June 2018. 

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities 

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015. the Chief Financial Offcer is 
responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Acco.,nts in the form directed by the Deportment for Communil'es. 

The accounts must give a true end fa·r view of the income and expenditure and cosh flows for the financial year and the financial 
position os at the end of the financ'al year. 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts. the Chief Financial offiCer is required to: 

• observe the Accounts Direct' on issued by the Deportment for Communities including compf10nce with the Code of Pract:ce 
on Local Authority Accounting in the Uniled Kingdom 

• follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis, and 

• make judgements and estimates that ore reasonable and prudent. 

The Chief Fcnanc'cl Officer is also required to: 

• keep proper accounting records that are up-to-dote. and 

• take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
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Annual Governance Statement 2017/2018 

The Council's Annual Governance Statement (AGS) follows DfC accounts directions and 
where applicable, the factsheet on governance statements issued by the NIAO in 2013, and 
comprises the following sections: 

• Scope of responsibility 
• The purpose of the governance framework 
• The governance framework 
• Review of effectiveness 
• Update on the significant governance issues that were declared at the year-end 

2017 
• Significant governance issues for the year-end 2018 

Scope of responsibility 

Belfast City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 
duty under Part 12 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland} 2014 to make 
arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, 
having regard to a combination of strategic effectiveness, service quality, service availability, 
fairness, sustainability, efficiency and innovation. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement, which is consistent with the 
principles of the new CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government (2016 edition). This statement explains how the Council has complied with the 
code and meets the requirements of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit} 
Regulations (Northern Ireland 2015) in relation to the publication of an annual governance 
statement. 

The purpose of the governance framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 
which the Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads its communities. lt enables the Council to monitor the achievement 
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 
of appropriate services and value for money. 
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The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. lt cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The governance framework continues to be In place at Belfast City Council for the year 
ending 31st March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Governance Statement 
and statement of accounts. The following section sets out the key elements of the 
governance framework. 

The governance framework 

Our committee structure, which is based on the full council and six standing committees is 
illustrated and described below. 

Strategic Policy 
and Resources 

Committee 

City Growth and 
Regeneration 
Committee 

People and 
Communities 
Committee 

Planning 
Committee 

Ucensing 
Committee 

BWUH Ltd 
Shareholder's 
Committee 

Through the work of committees, our Members oversee the work of the council. All 
committee decisions need to be ratified by the full council except where committees have 
been granted delegated authority to make decisions. 

The full council, which consists of all60 elected representatives, is the overarching decision· 
making body. 

The Strategic Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for setting the strategic 
direction of the Council through the development of its corporate plan and other key 
corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. lt will also ensure effective use of 
resources and value for money for ratepayers, and oversee the Council's relationship with a 
number of key agencies and partners. 

The City Growth and Regeneration Committee is responsible for the development and 
implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed to the 
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regeneration and growth of the city in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community 
and corporate plans and other corporate strategy. 

The People and Communities Committee is responsible for the development and 
implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life at a 
local level in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans and 
other corporate strategy. 

The Planning Committee is responsible for all of the Council's planning functions, except 
those matters, which are delegated to officers or reserved to full Council. 

The Licensing Committee is responsible for the consideration of all matters pertaining to 
policy and legislation in relation to licensing issues. 

The Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hallltd Shareholders' Committee is responsible for 
making the decisions required by the Shareholders' Agreement and ensure that the 
company complies with the contract for the operation of the venues. 

In addition to the Committees listed in the diagrams above there are ten Working Groups 
established which include the Audit & Risk Panel, the Budget and Transformation Panel and 
four Area Working Groups. 

In June 2018, the Council appointed a Commissioner for Resilience, fully funded by the 
organisation '100 Resilient Cities'. The Commissioner who reports directly to the Chief 
Executive, will work with Council officers and city partners to design and implement a 
resilience strategy for Belfast, focusing on economic resilience. 

The Audit & Risk Panel provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's 
risk management framework and associated control environment. lt provides an 
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance, which is 
relied upon by the Council, to the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control 
environment. The Audit & Risk Panel met four times during 2017/18. 

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out in the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework (2016 edition). How we meet these seven core principles is 
reviewed and updated annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance 
framework are set out in the table below: 

14 



A: Behaving with integrity B: Ensuring openness 

I 

• Shared values communicated via 
corporate plan, community plan and 
key strategies 

• Codes of conduct for Members & 
staff 

• PDP I appraisal process for Members 
& staff 

• Gifts and hospitality and conflicts of 
interest policies & registers in place 

• Fraud & whistleblowing policies and 
investigations 

• Good Relations Unit 

• Equ ality & Diversity Framework 

• Council constitution, standing orders 
& scheme of delegation 

• Expert professional advice 

• Partners and contractors required to 
comply with relevant policies 
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C: Defining outcomes 

I 

E: Developing capacity & capability 

• Creation of Strategic Hub 

• Benchmarking activity 

• Efficiency programme 

• Regular performance monitoring of 
the delivery of improvement 
objectives 

• Learning and development policy 

• Health and wellbeing strategy 

• Appraisal scheme in place for Chief 
Officers, Heads of Service and Senior 
Managers 

• PDPs for officers and Members 

• Member capacity building plan in 
place for 2017118 

• Continuing Development Programme 
in place for the Planning Committee 

• Party group briefings 
Commercial Panel to lead on the 
development of commercial skills 

r D: Qptimising.ihe achievement of · • 

.outcomes 
·.~ - ... 

F: Finance, performance and risk 
management 

• Strategic financial management 
framework in place 

• Efficiency programme 

• Performance management framework 

• Corporate performance management 
(CorVu) system in place 

• Financial resilience review 

• Risk management strategy 

• Corporate risk management system 
(MKinsight) and processes I procedures 
in place 

• Regular reporting of finance, risk & 
performance 

• Audit and Risk Panel 

• Internal audit function I annual 
internal audit strategy & plan in place 

• Recommendations Monitor process 

• Data protection policy and procedures 
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:G: Transpar;ncy;-r~porti;,g -& effectl~ 
accountability , - . : 

. _.,.. ... - ~ -- . - ·- . . - - . ~ 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources is the Council' s 
designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government Finance Act (Northern 
Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial affairs. 

The Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements 
of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 
(2016). 

Having considered all the principles of the ClPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 
Fraud and Corruption (2014), subject to the implementation of the Fraud Action Plan, the 
Council has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and 
commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. 

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010) sets out the five 
principles that define the core activities and behaviours that belong to the role of the Head 
of Internal Audit (HIA) in public service organisations and the organisational arrangements 
needed to support them. 
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The Head of AGRS, and the supporting operational arrangements in place, conform to the 
five principles set out in the CIPFA Statement. This is demonstrated through a self-
assessment exercise undertaken by AGRS. While the principles state that the HIA should not 
be responsible for preparing the annual governance report, the arrangements within the 
Council, involve AGRS eo-coordinating the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement 
which is then reviewed and approved by the Corporate Management Team, Assurance 
Board and Audit and Risk Panel, before being signed by the Chair of Strategic Policy & 
Resources, the Chief Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and 
Resources. 

Review of Effectiveness 

The following diagram illustrates the Assurance Framework in place that provides 
information on compliance with the various elements of the Council's Governance 
Framework, including performance reports, health and safety reports, finance reports, 
internal audit reports and risk management reports. 

18 



Key Components of the Council's Assurance Framework 
COUNCIL 

STRATEGIC POLICY & 
RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

I AUDIT ASSURANCE BOARD I L ANNUA:l:. IGOX/ERN~NCE I -- ~~AliE~ENif 
,_, ----1---

SaurcaoJ I FINANCIAl PERFORMANCE INTERNAl I I EXTERNAL 11 MANAGEMENT 
Auuto.,.... CONTROL MANAGEMENT AUDIT AUDIT ASSURANCES 

ICe, I • Budget • Belfast ' • A nnual plan • Audit • Quarterly 
"""""""b setting Agenda. • Assurance strategy ' Director 

• Budget • Corporate I reports- • Audited assurance 
monitoring fmprovement corporate accounts statements 

• Cllallenge Plan 17- 21 risks f. other • Annual audit 1 
• Annual I 

meetings 1 • Improvement • Annual 11etter senior 
• In year objectives assurance • ,perfonnance manager 

reporting and KPis $~men~ assessment statements 
• Annual • Annual land • Audit action 

accounts quarterly tracking 
reporting 

I 
RISK 

MANAGEMENT 

• Corporate risk • 

I registeli 
• Quarterly 

review (risks, 
actiQns, 
process 
compliance} 

Our Code of Governance- how the Council manages lts affairs 

I 
PROGRAMME 

MANAGEMENT 

• capital and 
investment 
programme 

• Committee 
reporting 

• OVersight 
Board 

I 
HEAlTH& 

SAFETY 

• H&sPian 
• Quarterly 

reporting 1· Inspection 
programme 

• H&s 
Assurance 
Board 

• Action 
tracking 

] Policies, procedures and processes ] 

19 



The various in year and year-end reports arising from the Assurance Framework are reviewed and 
approved by the Audit and Risk Panel and Strategic Policy and Resources Committee annually. 

In addition, the review ofthe effectiveness of the Governance Framework is also informed by: 
• the annual review and update of the Code of Governance; 
• comments or recommendations made by the external auditors during their annual audit; and 
• the Head of Audit Governance and Risk Services (AGRS) annual assurance statement for the 

period ending 2017/18, which gives an opinion on the Council's risk and control environment. 

An extract from the Head of AGRS Annual Assurance Statement for the period ending 2017/18 is 
given below: 

"As Head of Audit, Governance and Risk Services (AGRS), on the basis of work carried out, I can 
provide a reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's framework 
of governance, risk management and control. This opinion is based on the following: 

• evidence from audit assignments that areas subject to detailed internal audit during 2017/18, in 
that AGRS has been able to provide positive statements of assurance with the majority of audits 
falling into the 'some improvement needed' category- the 2"d tier of assurance in the 4 tier 
model (see Table 2 at section 3 of this report) 

• application of risk management and management assurance processes and our review of the 
management of key corporate risks 

• the evidence set out in the review of the Council's Code of Governance and Annual Governance 
Statement regarding the range of key assurance and governance arrangements that the Council 
has in place to direct I oversee its activities. 

However, some weaknesses and areas for improvement have been identified through audit work. 
These have been reported in detail to the Council's Assurance Board and Audit and Risk Panel during 
2017/18 through quarterly progress reports. In addition, I have highlighted, where appropriate, 
where further action is required to implement agreed audit actions. 

In comparison with previous years, there are more assurance audits falling into the 'major 
improvement needed' category. This is a concern. I have highlighted to senior management through 
the Assurance Board (and related reporting to the Corporate Management Team), that while no 'red' 
audit reports hove been issued, it is important that some of the recurring themes arising in these 
audits are addressed These include ensuring that: 

• roles and responsibilities for the management and maintenance of key policies are clear. This 
includes ensuring clear ownership and accountability. In this regard, the proposed policy 
management process, which is due to be implemented by Legal Services during 2018/19, has the 
potential to secure improvements; 

• there is effective management of change, whilst also ensuring ongoing management of risks and 
performance of 'business as usual'. In this regard, management has proposed a new taskjorce 
approach to oversee organisational change; 
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• appropriate programme I project management arrangements are in place to deliver changes 
and.impravements. This applies in particular to revenue spend programmes I projects. The 
establishment of the new Strategic Hub presents an opportunity to implement improvements in 
this regard; 

• there are robust management, oversight and assurance mechanisms in relation to key risk areas 
and functions, supported by appropriate management information. AGRS will continue to 
emphasise the importance of this through its audit and risk management (facilitation) work. 

With regard to risk management, during 2017/18 AGRS has undertaken independent 'assurance' 
reviews of the management of a number of the key corporate risks. While these reviews have 
confirmed the focus of management on these key risks, our work has identified that further action is 
required to implement risk action plans and reduce risk exposure to target levels. These include the 
development and effective operation of 'oversight' arrangements as well as operational controls." 

Continued effort has been put into developing and implementing the key elements of an assurance 
framework within the Council with the key elements being: 

• a process whereby senior managers are required to sign annual assurance statements; 
• a process whereby Directors are required to sign quarterly assurance statements; 
• embedding risk management and developing the arrangements for oversight of the 

management of these risks; 
• business planning and related performance reporting arrangements; 
• an Audit and Risk Panel; 
• a professional internal audit function, which has been reviewed for effectiveness against the 

CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government; and 
• a Health & Safety Assurance Board. 

Update on the Significant Governance Issues that were declared at the year-end 2017 

Six issues were declared last year and three of these continue to be declared as issues in this year's 
statement (waste management, digital information security and procurement). An update on the 
action that was taken regarding the remaining three issues that were declared last year (agreement 
and delivery of the Community Plan I Belfast Agenda, the organisation's transformation programme 
and external fraud) is provided below. 

Agreement and delivery of the Community Plan I Belfast Agenda 

We undertook the following actions to manage the risk: 
• Held an inaugural Community Planning Partnership meeting in February 2018 to engage 

partners on the ambition of the Belfast Agenda and the work required to deliver the 2017-2021 
priorities 

• Commenced work with partners on detailed action planning to identify progress against Stretch 
Goal targets any opportunities or gaps in Stretch Goal delivery 

Currently staff are working towards the next stage of engagement with partners in parallel with the 
following: 
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• Finalising the appropriate governance structures and reporting regime for the Belfast Agenda 
• Agreeing and implement performance management arrangements, with reference to the 

agreed outcomes framework 
• Agreeing the Inclusive Growth Framework for the Belfast Agenda 
• Implementing a pilot of the City Dashboard 
• Continuing to put resources in place to support the ambition of the Strategic Hub. 

Organisation's Transformation Programme 

We undertook the following actions to manage this risk: 
• Designing and establishing a new organisational functional blue print. 
• Recruiting a range of Strategic & Operational Directors job roles including designing appropriate 

organisational structures and delivering leadership development. 
• Driving a range of priority projects including City & Neighbourhood Services, Place & Economy, 

Legal & Civic Services, Property & Projects and HRIPayroll system. 
• Continuing to implement the agreed Member Development Framework and Health & Wellbeing 

Strategy. 

The Council is now developing the next phase ofthe transformation or continuous improvement 
programme. At present the activities are focused on the following: 
• Agreeing the detailed priorities for the Continuous Improvement programme plan, which will 

finalise the structure changes across Council and implement further efficiency and effectiveness 
improvements. 

• Identify a suite of enabling activities that will underpin the Continuous Improvement 
programme and wider organisational performance. 

• Agree the resourcing strategy for the next phase of the Continuous Improvement programme. 
• Develop a communications strategy for Members and Staff. 
• Continue to put resources in place to support the ambition of the Strategic Hub. 

External fraud 

Following the fraudulent change of bank details of one of the Council's main vendors, revised control 
procedures in the Central Transactions Unit (CTU) were implemented in 2013. In a recent report, 
Audit Governance and Risk Services highlighted that during a period of management I supervisory 
change in CTU, there had been delays in completion of some of the supervisory checks over the 
critical change process. A new CTU Manager has been appointed and has taken up post and 
management I supervisory checks are being completed within designated timescales. The control 
procedures have also been reviewed to ensure resources are targeted at key risk actions. 

Significant Governance Issues for the year-end 2018 

The significant governance issues for 2017118 were identified through the review of the risks in the 
Corporate Risk Register for the year ending 31 March 2018, consideration of significant events I 
issues and review of the Directors' Annual Assurance Statements. 
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The most significant issues for the Council are in relation to: 

1. Waste management 
2. Digital Information Security 
3. Procurement and Contract Management 
4. Bonfire management 
5. Change management 
6. Belfast Region City Deal 

More information on these significant governance issues is provided on the following pages. 

1. Waste Management 

The impact of the failure to manage the City's waste targets in an affordable manner is significant in 
relation to the financial penalties that can be imposed. Key actions have been undertaken to 
mitigate against the likelihood of this with the draft Waste Framework that is currently out to public 
consultation and the commitment of Capital investment for key elements of the service. The 
monitoring of our existing waste contracts is ongoing. In addition we will continue to monitor the 
position of the proposed arc21 Residual Waste Treatment Project following the Court of Appeal's 
judgment in July 2018 in relation to planning permission, and the subsequent decision by the 
Department for Infrastructure not to appeal this ruling. 

2. Digital Information Security 

Security of our information assets remains a concern. Digital Services uses its resources to deliver a 
securely designed infrastructure, continually improve the maturity of security processes and to 
ensure security controls are in place to detect threats to the ICT environment. The delivery of a 
secure ICT Infrastructure aligns security activities with business need in order to optimise security 
budgets and resources. 

Additional actions that will be carried out to mitigate this key corporate risk in 18-19 include: 
• Establishing a Security Oversight Group within Digital Services to oversee: 

Security strategy and policy (aligned with the Information Governance Unit} 
Security Architecture 
Current state assessment 
Security Programme of work (including implementation of audit actions from the recent IT 
Infrastructure, Security and Business Continuity Audit) 
Measuring performance 

• Revising ICT security strategy against business impact assessment 
• Investigation of tools to detect approved and non-approved use of cloud-based services 

3. Procurement and Contract Management 

Procurement and contract management was identified as a new corporate risk last year. lt 
continues to be a challenge due to the increasingly complex nature of the Council's procurement 
requirements, current capacity issues and issues in relation to compliance with policies and 
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procedures. Following a recent management review and audit, Council has agreed to a new staffing 
structure for the Procurement Service, following recruitment, a priority will be to develop and 
deliver an improvement plan to address these issues. 

4. Bonfire Management 

Bonfires are a very complex legacy issue and a framework for managing them needs to be agreed at 
a regional level and the Council has a role to play in this process. Given the issues that arose in the 
summer of 2.017, Council commissioned an independent review of bonfire management, with the 
report issued in April 2.018. The Council is committed to fully implementing the recommendations in 
the report and new governance arrangements have been put in place for taking these forward. 

5. Change management 

An overarching issue for the Council is the management of change. The Council is going through a 
period of significant change arising from; the need to deliver the Belfast Agenda and the related 
Corporate Plan; the recruitment of Strategic and Operational Directors and; the way we operate in 
an increasingly complex and uncertain environment. A new Director of City and Organisational 
Strategy has been appointed to lead a Strategic Hub to support the organisation during this period of 
change and enable delivery of the Belfast Agenda. 

6. Belfast Region City Deal 

In November 2017 the UK Government announced that they would open negotiations on the Belfast 
Region City Deal. This creates the opportunity for the delivery of a transformative programme of 
investment across the six Council areas that have formed a partnership to negotiate the Deal with 
the UK and Northern Ireland Governments. Delivery ofthe deal may require the establishment of 
new financing and governance arrangements involving a range of partners. The Deputy Chief 
Executive, and SRO for the City Deal project, will lead a working group on Finance and Governance to 
develop governance proposals relating to the implementation of the City Deal for agreement by 
Councils and other partners. 

Chair Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

~~:;~~~~~;1;~-~~..~._. 
Signed: ..... ~ .... ~~~ ....................................... . 
Chief Financial Officer 
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NORTHERN IRELAND lOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES' 

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The Locai·Govemment (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern lrelond)2015 require larger local govem111ent bodies to prepare o 
remuneration report as port of the statement of accounts. 

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS 

COUNCILLORS 

Allowances ore payable by councils to councillors ond committee members under Part 3 of the local Government Finance Act 
(Northern lrelond)2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern lrelond)2012. which come into 
operation an 1 April2012. 

Guidance and de terminations on Councillors' Allowances applicable from 1 April2017 were issued by the Deportment for Communities 
in February 2017 (Circular LG 03/2017J. Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors ore published on council websites. 

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councillors were elected la the 11 new councils foro four year term. Belfast City Council 
hod 60 councillors in 2017/18. 

SENIOR EMPLOYEES 

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council ·n line with that determined by the 
Notional Joint Council (NJC) for local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Corporate 
Management Team, namely Chief Executive and Directors. 

Council appointments of employees ore mode in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions' Code of Procedures on 
Recruitment and Selection. which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competiron. 

Unless otherwise stated below. the officials covered by this report hold appo1nlments which ore open-ended. 



ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS 

The total amount paid to Councillor> by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 
and the Local Government (Payments to Councillor>) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 was: 

Table 1: Total Alowances paid to councillors (audited Information) 

Allowance 2017/18 2016/17 
Total Allowances Number of Councillors Toto! Allowances Number of 

£ receiving the Allowance £ Councillors receiving 
the Allowance 

Basic Allowance 849.435 60 848.445 

Special Responsibility Allowance 107,580 41 107,661 
Lord Mayor Allowance 34,800 1 34,800 

Deputy Lord Mayor Allowance 6,250 1 6,250 

PCSP Allowance 13.620 27 14.940 

High Sheriffs Allowance 6,250 1 6,249 

Subsistence 7,812 38 5.273 
Mileage Allowance 11.410 38 15.640 
Couroes/ Conferences Visits 25,345 38 13,699 
(registration & joining fees) 

Telephone rental 4.261 18 3.914 

Miscellaneous costs 2,834 15 908 

Other travel allowance 27,076 44 14.323 

TOTAL ALLOWANCES 1.09&.673 - 1.072,102 

Details of the allowances paid to individual councilloo in 2017/18 are published on the council website at 
www.belfastcity.gov.uk/council/freedomofinformation/cauncillorexpenses.aspx. The above table provides further information and 
details on the allowances paid to councillor> to that published on the council website. 

The following is a summary of resignation and appointments of councillors during 2017/18: 

Mervyn Jones passed away on 1 June 2017 and Councillor Peter McReynolds wos eo-opted on 28 June 2017. 

Janice Austin resigned on 18 October2017 and was replaced by Counc~lorOrla Nic Biorna on 19 October 2017 

David Bell resigned on 5 December 2017 and was replaced by Councillor Danny Baker on 8 December 2017 

Gareth McKee resigned on 28 December 2017 and was replaced by Councillor Dale Pankhurst on 30 January 2018 

Gerard McCabe resigned on 15 January 2018 and was replaced by Councillor Ryan Murphy on 23 January 2018 

James McVeigh resigned on 2 February 2018 and was replaced by Councillor Claire Canavan on 5 February 2018 
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES 

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Corporate Management Teem. The following table provides de toils of the remuneration paid to senior 
employees in 2017/18: 

Table 2 ·Table 2: Remuneration (lncludlng salary)( audited lnformatlon) 
Officers 2017/18 . ~ 2016{17 

Sgfgry(Full Bonus Benefds In Total Salary (Full Bonus Benefits In Total 
I year Payments kind year Payments kind 

equivalent In equivalent In 
brackets where brackets 

I applicable) £'000 where £'000 
£'000 £'000 applicable) £'000 

£'000 

Chief Executive- Suzanne Wyfle 135-140 135-140 IJO.t35 - - 130-135 

Director of finance & Resources • 105-t to - - 105-110 105-110 - - 105-110 
Ronan Cregan 

Director of Property & Projects- Gerry 100-105 - - 100-105 t00-t05 - - 100-105 
Miller 

Director of City & Neighbourhood 95-100 . - 95-100 95-100 - . 95-100 
Services - Nigel Grimshow 

Director of City Centre Development- 95·100 . - 95-tOO 75-80 - - 75-80 
Nuola Gallogher (95-tOO FYE) (95-100 

IFvFI 
City Solicitor- John Welsh 95-100 - - 95-100 90.95 - - 90.95 

Director of Organisational S-10 - - 5-tO 95-100 - - 95-100 
Development - Jilt Minne• (95-100 FYE) (95·100 FYE) 

Director of Planning & Place - Phil 70.75 - - 70.75 90.95 - - 90.95 
Wilfioms• [90.95 FYE) (90.95 FYE) 

""Director of Economic Development 0.5 - 0.5 - - -
JohnGreer (80-85FYEI (B0-85FYE) 

""Director of City & Organisational S-10 - - S-10 . - -
Strategy - John TuUy (100-105 FYE) (100-105 FYE) 

"Two directors leH the Council in the 2017-IByear. Direc tor of Organisotionol Development Jill Minne leHin April 201 7, and the Director of P•onning & 
Place Phil Williams leH in December 2017. 

""Two directors joined the Council in the 2017-18 year, John Greer (Director of Economic Development) and John Tu!ly (Director of City and 
Orgonisolional Strategy) both joined in March 2018. 

-

-

Councils ore required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate Management Team and the 
median remuneration of the Councils workforce. 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate Management Team in the finonc·ar year 2017/18 was £135k · £1 401c. This was 
6.1 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £22658. 

Table 3: Relationship between the remunercrilon of the highest paid member of the Corporate Management Team and the median remuneration of the 
Counc:lls workforc:e (audited Information) 

2017/18 2016/17 
£'000 £'000 

Solary Bond of Highest Paid member of the Corporate Monogement 135-140 130.135 
Median Total Remuneration 22.7 22.4 
Ratio 6.1 5.9 
In 2017/1 B. no employees rece1ved remunerohon 1n excess of the h1ghest po1d member of the Corporate Monagemenl Team. 



Total remuneration includes so'ory, bonus payments and benefits ·n kind. 

Salary 
"Salary" includes gross salary, overtime. and any ex gratia payments. 

Benefits In Kind 
• The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the emp'oyer and treated by HM Revenue and Customs os a 

taxable emolument. 

Exit Packages for staff 
The number of ex1l packages provided to staff by the Council during 2017/18, together with total cost per bond and total cost of the 
voluntary redundancies, os agreed under the Council's voluntary redundancy scheme, ore set out in the table below: 

Table 4: Exit Packages In 2017/18 (audited Information) 

2017/lB 2016/17 

Number of Number of Total Total Cost of Number of Number of Total Total Cost 
Compulsory Other Number of Packages In Compulsory Other Number of ot 

Severance Package Cost Band Redundancies departures ExH each Cost Redundancies departures Exit Packages 
agreed Packages In Band agreed Packages lneoc:h 

each Cost £'000 In each Cost Band 
Bond Cost Band £'000 

m - £2o.ooo . 7 7 67 - 1 I 17 
£20,001 • £40,000 . .( 4 135 - 9 9 246 
£40,001 • £60,000 . 6 6 278 - 6 6 315 
£60.001 • £80.000 - 2 2 156 . s 5 341 
£80.001 · £100,000 . .( 4 370 - -
£100.001 • £150,000 - J 3 360 0 2 2 200 
£150.001· £200,000 . 2 2 312 . - -
£200.00 1 • £250,000 - 1 I 209 - - -
Total 29 29 1,887 . 23 2.3 1119 

Pension Benefits 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) which is o funded defined benefit pension scheme, which 
provides retirement benefits for councJ employees ono "career overage revalued earnings" basis from 1 April2015. Prior to lhol dote 
benefits were built up on a "fnol salary" basis. 

From 1 April2015, a member bu'lds up retirement pension at the role oil/49th pensionable poy for each year. Pension benefits in 
relation to membership between 1 Apr~ 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rote of 1/601h pensionable poy for each year of 
membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009. Pension benefits in re'otion to 
any membership before 1 April2009 were buil t up ot the rote of 1/8Dih (pension) and 3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for 
each year of membersh·p up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to 

•• HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) lim;ts. The conversion rate is £12 odditiQ,nallump sum for every £1 of pension given up. 

Council ors hove been able to jo"n the Scheme s"nce May 2011. The Scheme opp•coron is modified to reflect the fact that councJiors 
hold on eected office. Councillor members hove always accrued pens'on ono career overage basis. Prior to 1 April2015 pension was 
accrued ot o rote of l/60th and thereollerot o rote of 1/49th. 
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The Scheme is funded by contributions made by bath employees/council!~ and employers. Prior to 1 April2009. a member's 
contribution rates were fiXed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration (except far those who were entitled to contribute to the Scheme 
at 5% before 1 February 2003 and hove remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution rotes. determined by the 
whole-time equivalent rote of pay, were introduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member contribution rates ore determined 
on the actual rate of pay. 

The ranges for the bonds for tiered contribufon rotes ore revised by the Deportment for Communities in April each yeor in occordonce 
with the increase applied too pension in payment. The bonds, effect;ve from 1 April 2017, were os follows: 

Table 5: Employee Contrlbullon Roles 

Bond Range Employee Contribution Rate 

1 £0-£14.100 5.5% 
2 £14,101-£21.500 5.8% 
3 £21.501-£35.900 6.5% 
4 £35.901-£43.400 6.8% 
5 £43.401 -£85,800 8.5% 
6 More than £85.800 10.5% 

Employers' contribution rotes ore determined by the fund's actuary every three years at the triennial valuation. A formal triennial 
actuarial valuation of the Fund os at 31 March 2016 was carried out in 2016/17 and set the employer contribution roles for the 3years 
commencing 1 April2017 os follows: 

Table 6· Employer Contribution Rates 
Year Employer Contribution Rate 

1 April2017- 31 March 2018 18% + 2% deficit recovery contribution 
l April2018-31 Morch2019 19% + 2% deficit recovery contribution 
1 Apri12019- 31 March 2020 20% + 2% deficit recovery contribution 

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The local Government 
Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were mode on 30 June 2014. Both sets of 
regulations ore effective from 1 April2015. 

Council!~ hove been ob'e to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore hove not accrued significant benefits thus for. However, 
the in-year pension contributions mode by the Council for all councillors during 2017/18 was £1 54,733. 



The value of pension benefits o f the most senior management of the Councn accrued durfng the year was os follows: 

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staH In 2017/18 (audited Information) 
Officers 0 Accrued Pension at Real Increase In pension CETVaf CETV at Real Increase In 

'h·· I pension age as at and related lump sum at 31/3/18 3t/3/t7 CETV 
31/03/18 and related pension age 

0 lump sum (LS) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
£'000 

Suzanne Wylie 50-55 (0-25) 862 796 35 
105-1 10 (LS) 0-25 (LS) 

Ronon Cregon 45-50 0-2.5 776 728 14 
80-85 (LS) (0-2.5) (LS) 

Gerry Miller 45-50 (0-2.5) 1.032 1.038 (37 
105-110 (LS) (0-2.5) (LS) 

Nigel Grimshaw ()..5 0-25 47 25 12 
0 ILSI 0 (LS) 

Nuala Gallagher 0-5 0-25 33 14 8 
0 (LS) O(LS) 

JohnWalsh 3l>-35 D-2.5 558 517 16 
55-60 (I.S) (()..2.5) (lS) 

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
This is the actuoriolly assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The 
benefits valued ore the member's ac crued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. 11 is a payment 
mode by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have a ccrued in Their former scheme. The pension figures shown 
relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total member1hip of the pension scheme, not Just their 
service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in acc ordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes 
(Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any a c Tual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from 
Ufetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are token. 

The real Increase In the value of the CETV 
This reflects the increase in CETV effective y funded by the employer. lt does not inc'ude the increase in accrued pension due to 
Inflation, conTributions paid by the employee ( ncluding the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the slart and end of the period. However, The real increase calculaTion 
uses common actuarial factors ot the start and end of the period so that it disregards the effect of any changes in factors and focuses 
only on the increase that is funded by the employer. 

Chief Ananclal Officer 



Certificate of the Chief Rnanclal Officer 

I cert fy that: 

(a) the Statement of Accounls for the year ended 31st March 2018 on pages 351o 126 has been prepared in the form directed by 
the Deportment for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 39 to 62 and page 115. 

(b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the 
financial year and the financial pos'lion os at the end of the financial year ending 31st March 2018. 

Chief Rnanclal Officer 

oote '2--f / ~ (r?;, 
These accounts were approved by resolution of the Strategic Policy & Resource Committee on 21 September 2018 

Chairperson 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

Opinion on financial statements 

I have audited the financial statements of Belfast City Council and its group for the year ended 31 
March 2018 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements 
comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, together with the Group Accounts and the 
related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set 
out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described 
in that report as having been audited. 

In my opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements 
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017·18, 
of the financial position of Belfast City Council and its group as at 31 March 2018 and its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and 
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities' 
directions issued thereunder. 

Basis of opinions 

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs). My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for 
the audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and I are independent of 
Belfast City Council and its group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial 
Reporting Council's Revised Ethical Standard 2016, and have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinions. 

Other Information 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the Statement of 
Accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of 
Accounts other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in 
the report as having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. My opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion: 

• the parts of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared In 
accordance with Department for Communities directions made under the Local 
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and 
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• the information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 
2018 is consistent with the financial statements. 

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's 
Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and 
expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the year end. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government 
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. 

I am required to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of my certificate. 

This report is made solely to the Members of Belfast City Council in accordance with the local 
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the 
Statement of Responsibilities of the local Government Auditor and local Government Bodies 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if: 

• in my opinion: 

o the Annual Governance Statement: 

• does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting In the United Kingdom 2017·18; 

• does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for 
Communities; 

• is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my 
audit; or 

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

o the Statement of Accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited 
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 

o I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit, or 

• I issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern 
Ireland) Order 2005; or 
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• I designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any 
recommendation made to the Council; or 

• I exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the local 
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. 

Certificate 

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Belfast City Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the local Government 
Code of Audit Practice. 

Pamela McCreedy 
Local Government Auditor 
Northern Ireland Audit Office 
106 University Street 
Belfast 
BT71EU 

2l September 2018 

34 



Belfa5f City Counell 
Movement In Reserves Statement fOf the year ended 31 Mar eh 2018 

General Fund Other Fund Total Usable Tatot Unusable 
Reserves Reserves 

Total Counci 
Reserves Summery Botonces end 

Reserves 
£ 

Copilot 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£ £ £ £ ! 
Balance as at1 Apri12016 - -- _ 19,181.234 _ 27.679,322 --~-....:. ·, 1.263 369 :; :_- _-:;. 48,123,925 465,337,854 ~· 513,461,779_ 
Movement In reserves 
during the year 
Surplus/ (Deficit) on the (16.988.256) ( 16, 988.256) (16.988.256) provision of services 
0 ther Comprehensive (11.265.430) (11.265,430) 
Income and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive (1 6, 988,256) (1 6,988,256) ( 11,265,430) (28,253,686) 
Income and Expenditure 
Adjustments between 
accounting basis 8. 20.212.285 {3,070, 139) 369,088 17,511.234 (17.55'2.405) (41.171) 
funding under regulations 
Net Increase before 
transfers to Statutory and 3,224,029 (3,070,139) 369,088 522,978 (28,8 1 7 ,835) (28,294,857) 
Other Reserves 
Transfers to I from 
S totutory end Other (2.260.540) 2.260.540 
Reserves 
Other movements 844,729 283.411 1.128.140 2.603.150 3.73!,290 
lncrease/(Decrease) In 
year 

1,808,218 (526, 188) 369,088 1,651,118 (26,21 4,685} (24,563,567) 

Balance as at 31 March 2017 ~- • - 20,989,452 _ 27,153, 134 ~::~:-_-,1 ,632.457 - - ~-- 49,775.043 439.123.169 -:- 488,898.212~ 
Movement in reserves 
during the year 
Surplus/ {Deficit) on the { 17.635,955) (17,635,955) (17.635,955) provision of services 
O ther Comprehensive 23,892.284 23.892.284 
Income and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive (17,635, 955) (17,635,955) 23,892.284 6,256,329 
Income and Expenditure 
Adjusl~ts between 
accounting basis 8. 21,750,500 (276.792) 3,107.000 24.580.708 (24.684.708) 1104,0001 
funding under regulations 
Net lncreose beiOJe 
transfers to StatutOJY and 4,114,545 (276,792) 3,107,000 6,944,753 (792,424) 6,152,329 
Other Reserves 
Transfers to I from 
Statutory end Other (1.430,134) 1,430.134 
Reserves 

Other movements 734,733 (65.170) 669,563 (247,987) 421.576 

lncrease/(Decrease) In 
year 

3,419,144 1,088,172 3,107,000 7,614,316 (1.040,411} 6,573,905 ' 

Balance os at 31 March 2018 .' _:__ -=-~ 24.408.596 ~·;,~28.241.306 - - 4.739.457 -~ ~57.389,359 ~=~-:-438.082,758 - -· 495,472.117 

3S 



Belfast City Council 
Comprehensive tncome and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 

- ----- - - --- - - - - - -- -- - - -- - - - ---

~-· :-~. --:".. -:--.:;- --:;~ -- · · : 2017/18 ~ • ·,- · - Restated 2016/17 . 

Service Expenditure 
Strategic Policy 8. 
Resources 
City Growth 8. 
Regeneration 
People & Communities 
Plcnn'ng 8. Ucencing 

Other Net Operating 
Expenditure 

Financing and Investment 
Income end Expenditure 

(Surplus) or Deficit on 
Discontinued Operations 

Shore of Operating Results 

Notes 

2 

2 

2 
2 

8 

9 

of associates end Joint 30 
ventures 

Gross Gross Income Expenditure 
£ £ 

62655.671 (9.437.721) 

31.889,241 ( 11,462,686) 

1 06,898,004 (15,984,609) 
7,835,696 (5,595,361 I 

5,166,932 

10.607.076 (6,894,671 1 

Net Expenditure Gross Expenditure Gross Income Net Expenditure I 
£ £ £ £ 

53.217.950 58.601.852 (9.972.973) 48.628,879 

20.426,555 29,485,306 (8,045,319) 21.439,987 

90,913,395 126,608,580 (15,004,163) 111,604,417 
2.240,335 7,220,402 (6,098,230) 1,122,172 

5,166,932 3.710,50'2 3,710,502 

3,712.405 4,996,832 (13,970.237) (8,973.405) 

- ---- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - -- - - - -

N~t Op~r'!t~ng Expenl:!!fyr~: .. .[-:~'-~ 22§,052,62.0 - (49.~7§,048) = ·- 175,677,572 230.~3.474 (53,090,922) 177,532,552. ' 

Taxation end Non-Specific 
Grant Income 

(Surplus)/Deficit on 
revoluolion of non-current 
assets 

Surplus/(Defid t) arising on 
revaluation of cvoiloble-
for-sole financial assets 

Remecsurements of the 
Net Defined Benefit 
Ucbility (Asset) 

Share of Other 
Comprehensive 
Expenditure & Income of 
associates and joint 
ventures 

10 

11 

27 

20 

30 

(21.440) (158.020.177) {158,041.617) 1,672.075 (162216,371) ( 160,544,296) 

(24,906,284) ( 18,228,570) 

1,014.000 29.494.000 



Belfast City Council 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018 

Rxed Assets 
Long Term Investments 
Investment in Associates 
end Joint Ventures 
Long Term Debtors 

• 
Short Term Investments 
Inventories 
Short Term Debtors 
Cosh and Cash Equivalents 
Assets Held for Sole 

Bank Overdraft 
Short Term Borrowing 
Short Term Creditors 
Provisions 

. : 
Long Term Creditors 
Provisions 
Long Term Borrowing 
Other Long Term Uabmres 
Donated Assets Account 
Capital Grants & Receipts in Advance 

• .._. Note~ • • 31st March 2018~3151 Morch 20t7J 
; £ 

11 667.564,799 646,270,937 

3a 3,346,932 3,070.140 

15 1,137,030 1.296.062 

1•: I' 

14 326.164 295,715 
15 17.525,840 21.920,844 
2S 10.418.212 7.317.266 
11 3.197.000 

0; 

25 
16 4,158,529 163,482 
17 25,161.702 27.011.604 
18 2.906.973 2.584.680 

-11( 32,227,204 . ~ 29,759.766 

17 60,848 82.707 
18 1.749.239 1,716,737 
16 32.604.494 36,444,276 
20 136.947.942 125.832942 
21 10.001 10,001 

22.23 1,247.132 623,323 

- --- -- -- -

LONGTERMliABILITIES_'_~~~~~~::!-;~~L'~• .. --:-~ 172,619,656 164.709,9861 

USABLE RESERVES 
Capitol Receipts Reserve 26 4.739.457 1.632.457 
Capitol Fund 26 25.669.445 24.567.205 
Leisure Mobilisaf on Fund 26 1,704,334 1,945,000 
Other Balances and Reserves 26 867,527 640,929 
General Fund 26 24.408.596 20.989,452 

UNUSABLE RESERVES 
Capitol Adjustment Account 27 417.064.424 427.822.657 
Revaluation Reserve 27 159.528.493 138.508,289 
Pensions Reserve 27 (136,947,9421 (125,832,942) 
Accumulated Absences Account 27 [1,344,2301 [1,374,835) 
Provisions Discount Rote Reserve 27 [217,987) 

438,082:758 ~ 439.123,169 ~ 
- --

495,472,117~488,898,212 ~ 



Belfast City Council 
Cash Flow Statement at31 March 2018 

Net Deficit on the provision of services 

Adjustment for non-cash movements 

Adjust for ltems included in the net surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services that ore investing and financing activities 

Cosh flows from Investing Activities 

Net Cosh flows from Financing Activities 

Cosh and cosh equivalents et the beginning of the reporting period 

Notc~?.ot7!1a~2o16117 

2S 

2S 

£ 

(17,635,955) 

43.284.071 

(5.709 .S82) 

(16.992.852) 

155,264 

7.317.266 

£ 

(16. 988.256) 

45.393.067 

(6.289,437) 

(48,349,864) 

1.846.249 

31.705,507 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

Accounting Policies 

a General Principles 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions 
for the 2017/8 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 
March 2018. The Council is required to prepare an annual 
Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for 
Communities in accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the 
local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern 
Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. 

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, supported by 
International Rnancial Reporting Standards (I FRS). The accounting 
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of 
non-current assets and financial instruments. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

i) Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council 
transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the 
purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the 
Council can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the 
transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed -
where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and 
their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance 
Sheet. 

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services 
provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure when the 
services are received rather than when payments are made. 
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- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is 
accounted for on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or 
determined by the contract. 

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash 
has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant 
amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that 
debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a 
charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected. 

ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial 
institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in six months 
or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
In the Cash Flow Statement. cosh and cash equivalents ore shown 
net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Council's cash management. 

iii) Conflngent Assets 

A contingent asset arises where an event has token place that 
gives the Council a possible asset whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent 
assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a 
note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be on 
inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

iv) Contingent LlabiiHies 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that 
gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent 
liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would 
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in 
the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
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v} Employee Benefits 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 
months of the year-end. They include such benefits as wages and 
salaries. paid annual leave and paid sick leave. bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees. and are 
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render 
service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the year-
end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial 
year. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision 
by the Council to terminate an officer's employment before the 
normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis at the earlier of: 
a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or 
b) when the related restructuring costs are incurred. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions. 
statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension 
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated 
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. appropriations are required to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with 
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and 
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

Post Employment Benefits 
The majority of employees of the Council are members of the 
Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund 
administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' 
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits 
to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as 
employees worked for the Council. 

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015. staff that 
transferred from Central Government to the Council retained 
membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS) Pension 
Scheme. The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions). However. the arrangements 
for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits 
cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The 
Scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined 
contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits 
is recognised in the balance sheet. 

41 



The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund 

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is 
accounted for as a defined benefits scheme. 

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' 
Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method- i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee 
turnover rotes , etc. and projections of projected earnings for 
current employees. 

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a 
discount rate of 2.6% A discount rate is required to be set equal to 
the current rate of return on an AA rated (or equivalent) corporate 
bond "of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities". 
The discount rate is based on the AON Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve 
using the duration of the Council's liability. 

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' 
pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

quoted securities - current bid price 
unquoted securities - professional estimate 
property - market value 
unitised securities - current bid price 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven 
components: 

Within the Cost of Services 

Current Service Cost- the increase in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation (liabilities) resulting from employee 
service in the current period. 

Past Service Cost- (where applicable) the change in the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior 
periods, resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction or 
withdraw! of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan} or a 
curtailment (a significant reduction in the number of employees 
covered by the plan). 

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement- (where applicable} arising 
where a council enters into a transaction that eliminates all further 
legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits 
provided under a defined benefit plan. 
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Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) - the change 
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the 
passage of time. 

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
(Remeasurements) 
The Return on Plan Assets- excluding amounts recognised in the 
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes 
interest. dividends and other income derived from the plan assets, 
together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan 
assets, less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable 
by the plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial 
assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation. 

Actuarial Gains and Losses -changes in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation resulting from: a) experience adjustments 
(the effects of differences between the previous actuarial 
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of 
changes in actuarial assumptions. 

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations 
Contributions by Scheme Participants -the increase in scheme 
liabilities and assets due to payments into the scheme by 
employees (where increased contribution increases pension due to 
the employee in the future). 

Contributions by the Employer- the increase in scheme assets due 
to payments into the scheme by the employer. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by 
the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, 
not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations 
are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with 
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and 
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The 
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash 
flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary 
awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any 
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award 
and accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the 
Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund. 
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vi) Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

Events after the balance sheet date are those events. both 
favourable and unfavourable. that occur between the end of the 
reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is 
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the 
end of the reporting period -the Statement of Accounts is adjusted 
to reflect such events 

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 
reporting period - the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to 
reflect such events. but where a category of events would have a 
material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the 
events and their estimated financial effect. 

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the 
date when they are authorised for issue. This date will be recorded 
on the financial statements and is usually the date the local 
Government Auditor issues his certificate and opinion. Where 
material adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not 
reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 

vii) Exceptlonalltems 

When items of income and expense ore material, their nature and amount 
is disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on 
how significant the items ore to on understanding of the Council's financial 
performance. 

vffi} Prior Period Adjustments, Changes In Accounting Policies and 
Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in 
accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in 
accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e .• in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give 
rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by 
proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable 
or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial 
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected 
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the p rior period. 
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ix) Ffnanclallnstruments 

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be 
classified into just one class of financial liability and two classes of 
financial assets: 

Rnancial Liabilities 
Amortised Cost 

Rnancial Assets 
Loans and Receivables 
Available for Sale 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a 
financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Rnancing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based 
on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over 
the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally 
recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount 
payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing 
are credited and debited to the Rnancing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. 
However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a 
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or 
exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is 
respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the 
new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the 
loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 
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Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

a. loans and receivables- assets that have fixed or determinable 
payments but are not quoted in an active market 

b. available-for-sale assets- that have a quoted market price 
and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments. 

Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when 
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a 
financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They 
are then measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For 
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood 
arising from a past event that payments due under the contract will 
not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows 
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are 
credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
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Available-for-Sale Assets 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the 
asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on 
the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument. Where there ore no fixed or determinable payments, 
income (e.g., dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based 
on the following principles: 
a. instruments with quoted market prices - the market price 
b. other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted 
cash flow analysis 
c. equity shares with no quoted market prices - independent appraisal of 
company valuations. 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance 
with the following three levels: 
• Levell inputs- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets that the authority can access at the measurement date. 
• Level 2 inputs- inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 
that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly. 
• Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sole 
Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on 
Revaluation of Available-for -Sale Financial Assets. The exception is where 
impairment losses have been incurred- these are debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. along with any net gain or loss for the 
asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from 
a past event that payments due under the contract will not be made [fixed 
or determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written 
down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present 
value of the revised future cosh flows discounted at the asset's original 
effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any 
shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of 
any principal repayment and amortisation) . 
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Any gains and tosses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are 
credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure tine in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the 
Available-for-Sale ReseiVe. 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at 
cost (less any impairment tosses}. 

x) Foreign Currency Translation 

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in 
a foreign currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the 
exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was 
effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at 
the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 
March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure tine in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

xi) Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government 
grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised 
as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the 
payments, and 
b. the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to 
the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are 
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be 
returned to the transferer. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions 
have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as 
creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is 
credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants 
and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-
ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the 
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted 
to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been 
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in 
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital 
expenditure. 
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xn) Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non·monetory assets that do not hove physical substance 
but are controlled by the Council os o result of post events (e.g. software 
licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits 
or service potential wi I flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

Internally generated assets ore capitalised where it is demonstrable that 
the project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with 
adequate resources being available) and the Council wiD be able to 
generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being 
able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it con be 
measured reliably os attributable to the asset and restricted to that 
incurred during the development phose (research expenditure is not 
capitalised}. 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the 
website is solely or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council's 
goods or services. 

Intangible assets ore measured initio~y at cost. Amounts ore only revalued 
where the fair value of the assets held by the Council con be determined 
by reference to on active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by 
the Council meets this criterion, and they ore therefore carried at 
amortised cost. The deprecioble amount of on intangible asset is 
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services 
on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is on 
indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised ore 
posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing 
Operations in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of on intangible asset is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies os capitol expenditure for 
statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and 
losses ore not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. 
The gains and losses ore therefore reversed out of the District Fund Balance 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capitol 
Adjustment Account and (for any sole proceeds greater than £5k) the 
Capitol Receipts Reserve. 

xffi} Inventories & Long Term Contracts 

Inventories ore included in the Balance Sheet ot the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the First In First Out 
(FIFO) basis as recommended by lntemotionol Accounting Standard 2 
Inventories (IAS2). 

Long Term contracts ore accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus 
or deficit on the provision of services with the value of works and services 
received under the contract during the financial year. 
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xiv) Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals 
and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the 
property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and 
subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset 
could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm's 
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are 
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. 
Gains and losses on revaluation ore posted to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied 
to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to 
the Rnoncing and Investment Income line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and result in a gain for the 
General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains 
and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an 
impact on the District Fund Balance. The gains and losses are 
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

xv) Landflll Allowance Scheme 

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill 
Allowances Scheme (Northern Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local 
Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the maximum 
amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to 
landfill but there are no tradable allowances. lt is not a 'cap and 
trade' scheme since landfill allowances are not tradable. For this 
reason. land fill allowances are not recognised as assets on the 
Balance Sheet. 

xvi) Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and 
buildings elements are considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but 
convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted 
for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
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The Council as Lessee- Finance Lease 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is 
recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the 
lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset 
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the 
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying 
amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are 
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are 
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property -
applied to write down the lease liability, and 
b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement). 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is 
accounted for using the policies applied generally to such assets, 
subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset's estimated useful life. 

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover 
depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on leased 
assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from revenue 
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with 
statutory requirements. Depreciation and impairment losses are 
therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the General Fund 
Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capitol 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 

Operating Leases: 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense 
of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life 
of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments 
(e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the 
lease). 
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The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease 

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or on item of 
plant or equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet 
os a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the conying amount of 
the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or 
Assets Held for Sole) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement os port of the gain 
or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the some line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also os port of the gain or loss on disposol[i.e. 
netted off against the conying value of the asset at the time of disposal), 
matched by a lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet. 

lease rentols receivable ore apportioned between: 
a . a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property- applied to 
write down the lease asset (long term debtor) together with any premiums 
received, and 
b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General 
Fund Balance and will be required to be treated os a capital receipt. 
Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General 
Fund Balance to the Capitol Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 
settled by the payment of rentols in future financial years. this is posted out 
of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capitol Receipts Reserve in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, 
the element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property 
is used to write down the lease asset (debtor). At this point. the deferred 
capitol receipts are transferred to the Capitol Receipts Reserve. 

The written·off value of disposols is not a charge against council tax. os the 
cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for 
capitol financing. Amounts ore therefore appropriated to the Capitol 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

The Council as lessor - Operating lease 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or on item of 
plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental 
income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits ore mode on 
a stroight·line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the 
pattern of payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement 
of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the 
lease ore added to the conying amount of the relevant asset and charged 
as on expense over the lease term on the some basis as rental income. 
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xvii) Dlsposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset 
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than 
through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. 
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then 
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. 
Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, 
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously 
recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for 
Sale. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale. 
they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the 
lower of its carrying amount before they were classified as Held for 
Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that 
would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held 
for Sale. and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell. 

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped 
are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying 
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant 
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 
Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of 
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value 
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Amounts greater than £5k received for a disposal are categorised 
as capital receipts and credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district 
rates, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate 
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to 
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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xvlif) Overheads and Support Services 

The majority of overheads and support services ore included in the 
expenditure of the Strategic Policy & Resources Committee in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

xix) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others of for 
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified os Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of 
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on on accruals basis, 
provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure 
that maintains but does not odd to an asset's potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e., repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as on expense when it is incurred. The 
Council applies a de-minimis level of £25k to Plant & Machinery, 
Information Technology equipment. Fixtures&. Fittings and Office 
equipment, meaning only assets over £25k ore capitalised .. 
Subsequent capital expenditure is only capitalised where it 
provided on enhancement to the economic benefits of the asset in 
excess of those previously addressed. 

54 



Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
a. the purchase price 
b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management 
c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the 
item and restoring the site on which it is located 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst 
assets are under construction. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to 
be its fair value, unless the acquisition will not increase the cash 
flows of the Council . In the latter case, where the asset is acquired 
via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount 
of the asset given up by the Council. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference 
between fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the 
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. unless the donation has been 
made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 
the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following 
measurement bases: 

-infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction -
depreciated historical cost 
- community assets -at a nominal value as advised by the 
Independent Chartered Surveyor 
- short life assets. including road vehicles, plant and equipment. 
fixtures and fittings. office equipment. and IT and IT equipment-
depreciated historic cost as an estimate of fair value 
-surplus assets- fair value (at highest and best use) 
- investment properties- measured initially at cost and 
subsequently at fair value as outlined in accounting policy note xiv 
-all other assets- service potential (current value) 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of 
the specialist nature of an asset. depreciated replacement cost is 
used as an estimate of fair value. 
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Valuation 

The Council operates a rolling programme for the revaluation of 
Land and Buildings with approximately 25% of these being revalued 
by physical inspection each year and the remainder being 
revalued by a desktop exercise. Increases in voluotions ore 
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unreolised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they 
arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised 
since 1 April 2007 only, the dote of its formal implementation. Gains 
arising before that date hove been consolidated into the Capitol 
Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any 
indication that on asset may be impaired. Where indications exist 
and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less 
than the carrying amount of the asset. an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written 
down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains), with any excess charged to the service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is 
credited to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the 
original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would hove been 
charged if the loss hod not been recognised. 

The some accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a 
result of a general fall in asset prices across the board os opposed 
to a consumption of economic benefit specific to on asset as is in 
the case of impairment losses. 
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DeprectaHon 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment 
assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts 
over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain 
Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. 
assets under construction). 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the following 
classes of tangible asset: 

- buildings, installation and fittings are depreciated on their fair 
value over the estimated remaining lives of those assets as advised 
by the Independent Chartered Surveyors. Depending on the type 
of building, installation or fitting the maximum useful life will be a 
range up to 60 years. 
- infrastructure assets, short-life assets, including road vehicles, plant 
and equipment, fixtures and fittings, office equipment, and IT and IS 
equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
- straight-line allocation of the estimated useful lives 
- depreciation is charged in the month of capitalisation but not in 
the month of disposal 

Componentlsation 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major 
components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of 
the item, the components ore depreciated separately. 

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and 
buildings or equipment assets. The Council applies the following de-
minimis levels in relation to componentisation: 
- a component should be valued separately if it is greater than or 
equal to 3% of the total value of the asset and 
- the individual compenent has a valuation of greater than or equal 
to£300k 

Revaluations 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to 
the difference between current value depreciation charged on 
assets and the depreciation that would hove been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the 
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

xx) Heritage Assets 

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that are held 
and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture. 
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Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved 
in trust for future generations because of their cultural. 
environmental or historic associations> they would be held by this 
authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the 
maintenance of heritage. 

The Council's collection of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic 
Items) is reported in the balance sheet at insurance valuation, 
which is based on market values, or if it is not possible to obtain a 
valuation, they are maintained at historical cost less any 
depreciation. amortisation or impairment losses. These insurance 
valuations based on market values are updated on a periodic 
basis. Summary information on Heritage Assets has been provided 
for transactions in 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial years. Detailed 
information relating to transactions has not been included for prior 
years as it would not be practical to do so and there is little value 
added for the users of the accounts. 

xxi) Doubtful debts 

A review of debt recoverability is undertaken at year end to 
determine the level of doubtful debts and an impairment loss is 
recognised in respect of specific debts where recoverability is 
uncertain. 

xxii) Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the 
Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires 
settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court 
case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or 
the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and 
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account 
relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they ore charged to the 
provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are 
reviewed at the end of each financial year- where it becomes less 
than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the 
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is 
expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an 
insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if 
the Council settles the obligation. 
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xxiii) Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy 
purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by 
appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be 
financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate 
service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no 
net charge against District Rates for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for 
non-current assets, financial instruments and retirement benefits 
and do not represent usable resources for the Council- these 
reserves ore explained in the relevant note to the accounts. 

xxiv) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support 
services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

a . depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant 
service 
b . revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service 
where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve 
against which the losses can be written off 
c . amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise District Rotes to cover 
depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations. 
However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to 
contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing 
requirement [equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent 
basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and 
amortisations are therefore replaced by minimum revenue provision 
[MRP] in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capitol Adjustment Account in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
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xxv) Revenue Expenditure funded from CapHal under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under 
statutory provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non· 
current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant 
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a 
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out 
the amounts charged, so that there is no impact on the level of 
District Rates. 

xxvi) Value Added Tax 

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or 
capital in nature, is shown net of Value Added Tax, unless it is 
irrecoverable. 

xxvii) The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC) 

The Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction 
Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme. The Council is required to 
purchase and surrender allowances, currently retrospectively, on 
the basis of emissions, i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is 
used. As carbon dioxide is produced (i.e. as energy is used), a 
liability and an expense are recognised. The liability will be 
discharged by surrendering allowances. The liability is measured at 
the best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the 
obligation. normally at the current market price of the number of 
allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date. The 
cost to the Council is recognised and reported in the costs of the 
Councils services and is apportioned to services on the basis of 
energy consumption and these costs were £ 158k for 2017/18. 

xxviii) Landflll Exploration and Evaluatton 

The Council considers the facts and circumstances to determine 
whether an exploration and evaluation asset should be recognised 
in respect of the landfillsite including assessment of the amount, 
timing and certainty of future cash flows under I FRS 6. The Council's 
landfill site produces gas to generate electricity and the income 
from this electricity generation is reducing year on year due to 
environmental and other uncontrollable variables. In 2017-18 the 
costs of production of gas outweighed the income and resulted net 
loss of £63k. The Council does not recognise any asset in respect of 
this gas production as any forecasting or estimating of future 
income is uncertain. The Council cannot reliably measure or value 
such an asset under IAS 38. 
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xxix) Fair Value Measurement 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus 
assets and investment properties and some of its financial 
instruments such as equity shareholdings [other financial instruments 
as applicable] at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement dote. The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) in the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability. 

The Council measures the fair value of on asset or liability using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-
financial asset the authority takes into account a market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the 
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The 
authority uses valuation techniques that ore appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available. maximising 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservoble inputs. 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities 
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the authority's 
financial statements ore categorised within the fair value hierarchy. 
as follows: 
• Level 1 -quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that 
the authority can access at the measurement date 
• Level 2- inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 
that ore observable for 
the asset or liability. either directly or indirectly 
• Level3- unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

xxx) Capital Receipts Unapplied 
This represents capital receipts that are held on the balance sheet 
to finance future capitol expenditure. Income from disposal of fixed 
assets is posted into the capitol receipts unapplied account until 
such time as it is allocated to finance other capital expenditure. 

The amount of £250k in capital receipts unapplied relates to the 
proceeds from a disposal to the NI HE which will be used to finance 
a playground. 
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b Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been 
Adopted 

Accounting changes that are introduced in the 2018/19 code are: 
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers including 
amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers 
• amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure 
Initiative. 

c Critical Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying accounting policies set out from 1 a above the Council 
has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions 
or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical 
judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
Landfill Provision 
The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping 
and aftercare costs for the landfill site depends on a judgement 
around the appropriate discount rate to be used and the number 
of years over which these costs need to be provided. The landfill 
provision figures are sensitive to the assumptions used. The impact 
of amending the interest rates used to discount this provision has 
been mitigated through the creation of a Provision Discount Rate 
Reserve to accomodate fluctuations in the current value of the 
annual calculation of long term provisions for landfill costs. 

d Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of 
Estimation Uncertainty 

Pension Uability 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number 
of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate 
at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement 
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. 
A firm of consulting ac tuaries AON Hewitt is engaged to provide the 
Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. 
The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are 
sensitive to the assumptions used. 

The approximate impact of c hanging key assumptions on the 
present value of the funded defined benefit obligation as at 31 
March 2018 and the projected service cost for the year ending 31 
March 2019 is set out in Note 20. 
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Belfast CHy Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
fOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

2 
a Expenditure end Funding Analysis 

The Expenditure end Funding Analysis shows how cnnucl expenditure is used end funded from resources [government grants, rents, end roles) by 
local cutholilies in comparison with those resources consumed or ecmed by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices. 11 also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision me king purposes between the council's committees, 



Belfast CHy Council 
Notes lo the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

2 
b Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

This note provides a reconciiation of the moin adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive of 
the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalemenl. The relevant lranslers between reserves are 
explained in the Movemenl in Reserves Stolemenl 

Adjustments between Funding and AccounHng Basis 

Other Income and Expenditure from the 
and 

DiHerence between General Fund surplus or deficit 
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

B 

6,414,205 



Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 
- -- - - --- -

2016/17 
Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the - Adjustments - Net Change pther statutory -- - -- Othe r I:-:· -·-Total 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure tor Capitol for the ' Adjustments Differences I 
Statement Amounts Purposes Pension , ; 
i~:_ - · __ -

J -- ·-. • 
_ Adjustments · _ _ . ll . ___ , 

~~~liiliiiiiiiiiiiliiiiiiiiiiiiii~ 
Strategic Poficy & Resources {2.396,373) 62.116 [42.887) 3,959.748 1.582.60-4 
City Growth & Regeneration [3.156.900) {120.618) [4.257) (1.644.208) (4.925.983) 
People & Communities (35.026.050) (875.217) (601.656) (55,000) (36.557.923) 
Planning & Ucencing - (120,322) [22.2921 - (142.6141 

Net Cost of Services (40.579.323) (1.05-4.0411 (671.0921 2.260.5-40 (-40.043.916) 

Other Income and Expenditure from the 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2-4.218.012 (2.124.959) [882) [8-44.729) 21.2-47.442 

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit 
ond Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure 
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services (16.361.311) (3.179 .000) (671.974) 1.415.811 ( 1 8.796.47 4) 



Belfast CHy Councn 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

3 

Employee Benefits Expenses 
Other Services Expenditure 
Support Service Recharges 
Depreciation, Amortisation, lmpoirment 
Interest Payments 
loss (Gain) on the Disposal of Assets 
Other Expendilure 
Total Expenditure 

fees, Charges and olher service Income 
Interest and lnveslmenl Income 
District rote Income 
Government grants end Conlribullons 
Support Service Income 
Other Income 
Total Income 

(Surplus) or oenclt on the Provision ol Services 

Notes 
7 

4 

9o 
Be 

10d 
IOd 

2017/18-~-- ':: -:- 2016/17 - -_--
£ 

84,658,091 
107,809,591 

20.234,636 
1.749,388 
5,166.932 
5.412.542 

225,031,180 

(42,480,377) 
(6.894.671) 

(1 50.540,780) 
(7,479,397) 

(207,395,225) 

- 17,635,955 

£ 
82.950,960 

110,997,825 

30,051.043 
1,709,347 
3.710.502 
2.875.872 

232,295,549 

(39,120,685) 
(13,970.237) 

(148.284,081) 
(13,932.290) 

(215,307,293) 

16.988.256 



4 

Notes £ £ £ 
Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to b~ excluded when 
determining the Movement on the Genercll Fund Balance far the year: 

Impairments (losses & reversals) or 1101'-currenl 
assets 

Derecognitlon (other than dispose l or non-current 
assets 11 

Revaluation Increases/decreases token to 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 

Depreciation charged in the year on non-current 
assets 

Net Revenue expenditure funded from c opilot 
under statute 

Carrying amount of non current assets sold 
Proceeds from the sore of PP&E. investment 
property and intangible assets 

Difference between finance costs calculated on 
on accounting basis and finance costs calculated 

11 

11 

11 

8 

8.25 

In accordance with stalutory require men Is 23 

Ne I charges made for retirement benefits In 
accordance with IAS 19 
Direct revenue financing of Capitol Expenditure 

Capitol Gronls and Donated Assets Receivable 
and Applled In year 

Capitol Grants Receivable and Unapplied in year 

Rates Clow-Bocl: Reserve 

Adjuslments in relation to Short-term compensated 
absences 

Adjustments in relation to Lessor Arrangements 

Londli11 Regulations Reserve Adjustment 

Provisions Discount Rote Reserve Adjustment 

Amounts not Included In lhe Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement but required by 
statute to be Included when determining the 
Movement on the Ge11eral Fund Balance for the 
year 

Statutory Provision for the financing of Capitol 
Investment 

Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC 
and retirement benefits payable cf~rect to 
pensioners 

20 

12,27 

lOb 

10C 

23 

27 

27 

27 

27 

20 

4,974.816 

15,259.820 

8,612018 

(3,445.146} 

20,234,636 

5,166,932 

23.~97,000 

(5.518.199) 

(2.541.2281 

(30.605) 

26,160 

217,987 

(5.876.1831• 

( 13,526,0001 

16.047,198 

14,003,845 30.051.043 

4.122.115 

(411.613) 3.710..502 

17.056.000 

(4,296.859) 

(8.947.9631 

72.107 

599.867 

(4,155,412) 

(13.877.000) 
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a 

b 

Notes £ £ £ £ 
CapHaiFund 
Interest 
From Capitol 
Other 26 (1.514.399) (1 ,514.399) (2.161,588) (2, 161 .588) 
Leisure Mobilisation Fund 
Interest 
Other 26 240,666 240,666 55,000 55,000 
CapHat Receipts Reserve 
Interest 
Other 26 
Other Funds and earmarked reserves 
Interest (6,401) (3,952) 
From Other funds 
Other 26 (150,000) (156.401) (150,000) (153,952) 

(1,430, 134) (2.260.540) 

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations 

---- -- --

General power of campet_cnce 

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Norlhem Ireland) 2014, the Council has the power to do anything that individuals generally may 
do. Coundls hove the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is not limited to benefitting the area or Its residents 
nor is lt flmited by CJCisting powers. 

There was no expenditure under the power of competence during 20t7/t8. 

- -

Externa I Audil Fees · 

The Council has Incurred the following costs relorng to the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant c laims and other 
services provided by the Councils external auditors. 

- -- - -- -... ~~-- .. ~~ . -
External Audit Fees 78,000 75,000 
Nollonat Fraud lnitlollve - 2.t6t 
Performance Audit 22.200 20.298 

- ·...,....,..- 1"' ~ '- ~~ . -· -z ,r.:-,.~- :u!~ !T-: -t:.Ut;.El;ll 

The were no other fees payable In respect of any other services provided by the appointed auditor over and above those described above. 
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The Council hod leased o ut property too loco bank on o finance lease that wos surrendered at o cost of £950k in January 2018. 
This Is due to the redevelopment of Ande11town le:Sure Centre and the cost of buying out the lease is included in the overall costs 
of the new centre. The Councllleoses out o number of land assets by long term leases with lease terms from 250 to 999 years. 
The leases for 250 yeol3 ore on o perpetual basis ond it is assumed the leases will be renewed so the economic substance is 
simile r to cfLSposol. The rentollncome is either nil or 5p per annum. Rent is not normally rece:ved on these properties and future 
minimum lease Income is assumed to be nil. 

The present value of lease payments rece·voble under the finance lease arrangements Is recognised os o receivable and 
Included in both short and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable end the present value of the 
amounts receivable is recognised os unearned finance income. 

Gross receivables from finance leases 2017/l8 . 2016/17R. 
£ £ 

Long Term Debtors 
Finance leases- gross receivables . . 
less • Unearned finance income . . 
less • Unguaranteed residual value of property . . 
Net Present Value . . 

Short Term Debtors 
Finance leases- gross receivables . 27.038 
less • Unearned finance income . (878) 
less • Unguaranteed residual value of property . . 
Net Present Value . 26,160 

Gross receivables from finance tecues 
No later than 1 year . 27,038 
Later then 1 year and no later than 5 yeal3 . . 
Later than S yea rs . -
Total gross receivables . I 27,038 

Less-Unearned Mure finance Income on finance leases I . I (878) 
less-Unguaanteed residual value of property I . I . 

Net Investment In finance leases I . I 26,160 

The net Investment In finance leases may be analysed as follows· 
I 2017/18 2016/17 

£ £ 
No later then 1 year I . 26.160 
Later than I yea ond no later than 5 yea11 I . . 
Later than 5 years I - . 
Total Qross receivables I . I 26,160 

The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases ol the end of the year ore eslimoted of £Nil (Previous 
yeor£Ni1J 

The accumulated allowance for uncoDecloble minimum lease payments receivable is £Nillcamporolive year £N') 

No contingent rents w ere recognised os receivable by the CouncU. 

The interest rote inherent In the leases is fiXed otthe contract dole for the entire lease term. The overage interest rote contracted 
is approximately Nil~ (comparative year 3.35~) 



b Operating Leases (Counc:H as lessor) 

The Council, in accordonce with Its statulcxy and discretionary responsibilities. leases out property and equipment under operating teases for 
the fottowing purposes: 
• for the provision of community services. such os sports faci lities, tourism services and community centres 
• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for small local businesses 
• any other purposes 

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement ·n the current year amounts to £6,714,318 (prior year 
£6.796,415). 

The lease contracts ore oft non-concelloble and do not include on extension option. The lease terms o re between 1 ond 125 years. Future 
minimum lease Income is set out below: 

Minimum lease rentals rec:etvable: 
No later than 1 year I 6.298.4051 
Later than I year and no later than 5 years I 21.087.235 1 
Later than 5 years I 422.161.184 I 

r : · ~l ... H .1!:1'.rtt 

. I 
- I 
- I 

If 

Land and 
IUildJnsls 

£ 

6,167,9751 
20.273..4631 

397.641.536 I 

C:I'.C:R• t:Y,A'I.I.: 

Vehlc:tes, 
Plant and 

Equipment 
£ 

-. 
-

Cf 

The assets leased by the Council to third parties ore Included In the fottowing categories of Property, Plant and Equipment with carrying values 
of: 

Cost 
Accumulated depreciation and 
impoilments at I April 
Depreciation charge for the ye or 
lmpoilments 
Revoluollons 
Transfers In and rectassificotlons 

Council as lessee 
c flnanc:eleases (Counc:n os lessea) 

Vehicles, P'lant 
Land and and 
luHdlngs Eqvlpment 

£ £ 
93.901,169 

(4,600.000) 
(396.169) 

Land and 
luDdlngs 

£ 
86.430.371 

(50.000) 
6.944.629 

575,000 

Vehicles, 
Plant and 

Equipment 
£ 

Ill - 93,900.000 ·.· . ; ~ -: .;_:: 

The Council hos o number of assets of land held by long term leases from 980 to I 0.000 years. Rental Income is between 1 p to £32 per annum, 
if demanded. Rent Is not normally demanded on these properties and therefore future minimum lease payments ore assumed to be nil. 



d Operallng leases (CouncH as lessee) 

The Council is leasing a number of office buildings wilh lease terms up to 15 years and a vehicle with a lease lerm up to 4 years. During 2017/18 
the Council tenninaled two office building leases with on estimated reduction In rental charges for future years of £2.677.357. 

The expenditure charged to services In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slalement during the year In relation to these leases was: 

2017 11 
Vehicles, Plant 

Land and and 
Buildings Equipment 

£ £ 
Minimum lease payments I 562.216 48.943 I 
Contingent rentals I - - I 
Less: Sublease payments receivable I - - I 

Total I 562,216 I 48,943 I 

land and 
lulldlngs 

£ 
1.354.162 

-
-

1,354,162 

477.530 

-
-

4n.s3o 

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were mode or received. No sublease Income Is expected os all assets he d under 
operating lease agreements ore used exclusively by the Council. 

The Mure minimum lease payments due under non-concelloble operating leases in fulure yeOI'S ore sel out below: 

Minimum lease rentals payable: 
No later than 1 year I 
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years I 
Later than 5 years I 

Total I 

land and 
Buildings 

£ 

235.1501 
1.106.055 I 
1,637.161 1 

2.978.3661 

Vehicles, Plant 
and 

Equipment 
£ 

8.5761 
7.1181 

- I 

15,694 I 

land and 
Buildings 

£ 

630.2701 
862.345 I 

1,372.255 1 

2.864.870 I 

281 .980 
15,695 

-
297,675 

7i 
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b 

Solosfes and Wages I 65.511.324 I 64.-402.898 
Employoo NIC I 6.117,551 1 6.059,346 
Employers Superannuation I 13.029.216 I 12.488.716 

. . . . >~:,~: .:::- ~ 
; ... " ~.-." ,......;;;:-,: ; .. : .. ' . ' .. . 

The above staff costs Include the costs of the voluntary redundancies in 2017/18. These costs toto! £1,886,888 and ore disclosed seporotely ln 
Table 4 of the Remuneration Report. In addition. agency costs during the year amounted to £4,649,576 (161!7 £4.470.906) 

The Council's current contribuiion role to NlLGOSC scheme is I B'J!, plus o 2lf. deficit recovery contribution. AI the lost octurtor voluollon. doled 
31 March 2016, the Fvnd's assets os o who:e were sufficient to meet 96')!, (15/16 91'J!,) of the fiobilities accrued up to thot dote. 

Average Number of Employees- where FTE represents fulllime equivolenl employees 

Average Number of Employees 
FTE 

Slrolegfc Poficy & Resources 661 681 
City Growth & Regeneration 179 144 
People & Communities 1.239 1.259 
Planning & Ucencing 147 140 

. . . f'" "T :-; ~"'.-::'If . "'".r ,."'=t".~"" ~ ;:,.\<~~ -~ 

Full-time numbers employed 
Port-time numbers employed 

. . .. . --...: -. 'r~ 
. "!: . ..,.... ..... 

Actual Numbers 
Actual 

Numbers 

I 2.0331 2.044 
I 351J 329 

"R -~ ~~-:.:.·HWJ 
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c 

d 

e 

Senior Employees' Remunecalion t-- 2017/18 '"1,~ 2016/17 .. , 
£ 

£50.001 fo £60.000 50 49 
£60.001 fo £70,000 10 4 
£70,001 to £80.000 11 8 
£80.001 to £90.0000 I 2 -
£90.0011o£100.000 4 5 
£100.001 1o£110.000 2 2 
£110.0011o£120.000 - . 
£120.0011o£130.000 . . 
£130.001 to £140,000 1 1 

I .. ,., __ .... 
~,..., ... ...., , .. -: ..... ,-. ~:....: •·. - .. ~ 

. .., ... -:-:·-~-.~. L~j;~ ·»' 

Meinbecs· Allowances 

I • 

f 
Sol cries . . 
Basic Allowance 849.435 848,445 
Moyofs & Depufy Mayofs Allowance 41.050 41.050 
Special Responsiblllfy Allowance 107.452 107.661 
High Sheriffs Allowance 6.250 6.249 
Mileage 11.410 15.640 
Conferences & Courses 25,345 13.699 
Travel & Subsistence Cosfs 34,898 19,596 
Miscellaneous Cosfs 2.834 908 
Poficing & Communify Solely Partnership Allowance 13.620 14.940 
Telephone Rental 4.261 3.914 

H:mrl"':--· .. - 'J! · ~ .:'~ :..1!: 1 '. I I 

Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangemenls 

As. o result of Reform on \si Apci 2015. staff transferred from Cenlr~ Government to the Councll ore members of !he Northern Ireland Civil 
Service Pension Scheme. 

The North em Ireland O vil Serv'ce Pension arrangements ore unfunded mvlll-employer defined benefit schemes but the Deportment for 
Communities is unable to Identify its shore of the underlying ossels and fioliJilles. The most up fo dote actuarial voluot on wos carried out os at 
31 March 2012. This voluofon is then reviewed by the Scheme Acfuory and updated fo reflect current condillons and rolled forward to the 
reporting dote of the DoF Superannuation and Ofher A owonces Resource Accounts os ot 31 March 2018. 

For 2017-18. employers' conlribulions of £251,399 were payable to lhe NICS pension arrongemenls at one of four rotes In the range 20.8% lo 
26.3% of pensionable pay. based on salary bonds. The scheme's Actuary ceV.ews emp oyer contribullons every four yeoo following o fuU 
schemevoluotion. A new scheme funding volool'on based on dolo os ol31 March 2012 was c ompleted by the Actuary during 2014-15. This 
voluofion was used to determine employer contribulion rotes for the introduction of a new career o veroge eoming scheme from April 20 IS. The 
contribution rotes ore set lo meellhe cosl of the benefils accruing during 2017· 18 to be paid when !he memberrefires, and notlhe benefits 
paid during this period to exisling pensioners. 
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9 

£ £ 

Proceeds from sole (3,445.146) (411.613) 

Conying amount of non-current 
assets sold (excllnvestment 
Properties) 8.612.078 4.122.115 

5,166.932 3.710,502 

b Other Operating lncame/ExpendHure 

2017/1B~C2016/17:3' 

£ £ I Income 

Other Operating Expenditure~~.,f: c::'f6C,"rf-. -.- - -= 2017/18 ,~:.;..-· 2016/17JI 

a 

c 

[Surplus)/ Deficit on Non Current Assets 
Other Operating (Income) I Expenditure 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges ·-· 

Lease/hire purchase Interest 

Bank interest 
Government Loon Interest 
Commercial Loon Interest 
Other interest (please specify) 

Bank Interest 
Employee cor loon interest 
NIHE Loon inlerest receivable 

·Investment Income on Fund Bolonces 
Copltol Fund 
Repairs & Renewals Fund 
Other Funds 
Other Investment income 

Pensions interest costs 

Net interest on lhe net defined 
benefit fiabinty [asset) 

£ . 
. 

1.682,860 

-
66,528 

1,749,388 

56,769 
1.861 

115,322 

-
-

6.401 

-
180.353 

3,047,000 

£ £ 

I • 

£ . 
-

1.609.816 

-
99,531 

1,709,347 

97.374 
6,317 

171,550 

-
-

3.952 

-
279.193 

h 
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d Surplus/(Deflclt) on lradlng operations 

2017/18~A2D16/17 -::l 

£ £ I Income from lroding 
Expenditure 

(Surplus)/Defidt for the year 

e Income, ExpendHure and changes In Fair Value of Investment Properties 

ncome Including rentol1ncome 
Expendilure 
De-recognition In relation to 
amounts wril1en off 
Net Income from Investment 
properties 
Surplus/delklt on sale ol 
Investment Properties 
Proceeds from sole 
Canying amount of Investment 
properties sold 
(Surptus)/denclt on sole of 
Investment Properties: 

Changes In Fair Value of 
lnveslment Properties 

Interest Payable and Similar 
Charges 
Interest and Investment Income 

Pensions Interest cost 
Surplus/(Deficil) on trading 
operations 
Other Investment income 
Changes in Fair Value of 
Investment Properties 

I ' 

£ £ 
(6.714,318) (6,796,415) 

814 519 434,485 

. . 
(5,899,799) (6.361,930) 

. . 

. 4 

- -

4.996.169 (6,894.629) 
(903.630) (13.256.559) 

Expenditure Gross Income 
£ £ 

1.749,388 . 
- (180,353) 

3,047,000 -
- -

814.519 (6.714,318) 

4,996,169 -

ExpendHure 
£ 

1.749,388 
(180,353) 

3.047,000 

-
(5.899 ,799) 

4,996,169 

ExpendHure 
£ 

1.709,347 
. 

2.853,000 

-
434,485 

-

Gross Income 
£ 

-
(279.193) 

-
-

(6,796.415) 

(6.894,629) 

Expenditure 
£ 

1.709,347 
(279.193) 

2.853,000 

-
(6,361.930) 

(6.894,629) 
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~t~.._.::;-;-:.--•• ·•·- _ ~·; 2017/IB ~2016/17 "-:J 
£ £ I General 

Other 
I 4,984,3~7) I 

(4.938.169) (4,984,327) 

b C-apltalG~ts and Donated Assets ; Applied .. 
£ 

Govemmenl & Other Grants- (2,477,979] (8.353,473) 
Conditions met and applied in 
year 
Government & Other Grants-
Transfer from receipts in advance (63,249] (194.490] 
uonoteo Assets ·Conditions met . -
Donated Assets- Transfer tram 
donated assets creditor . (400,000] 

(2541.228] (8.947,963] 

£ £ 
Government & Other Grants· 
Conditions met and not appijed in 
year . 
Other . -

d. 

- - - - 2017/18 2016f17~ 

£ £ 

Current year (149.511.780] (148 284.081) 
linoriSalion- previous year 11.029,000) 1,672.500 
Transitional Relief . -
linofiSolion- other years (21.440) (425] 

(150.562220) (146.612.006] 

District Role Income n 50.562.2201 (146.612.006] 

Revenue Grants (4.938.169] (4, 984.327] 

Capitol Grants ond Contributions (2.541 ,228) (8,947.963] 

(158 041 ,617)1 (160,544,296)1 

lS 
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Notes la the Ananclal Statements 
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11 

a li ~- "'"""-~· ·1· = Q r '*=~ · · ~~~S+!WIIItt~iiEIIiiiiAf.ii\Wiiiiif~~H&\ii1.JH 

Balance as at 1 Apfil2017 103.657.851 403.227.655 5.772.087 41.911,334 'l!J7 I 14.810.877 3,674.001 573,054,062 I 4,681,022 I 9J,900,CXXJ 18,990,754 690,625,838 

345 345 36 

Increases/ 
to l!evoluollon 

!770) I - I - I - I 13,816,803 

Increase$/ 
loS~IUHlf 

the Provision of 
' 3t2.250 I 86-C,m I I I . I [1 ,501.135) I 269,998 1 1~21. 1 :aJI I (581,230) I I (4,996.169) I . I . I [5,577,399) 

-· 
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Balance as all Aplll2016 

llncreose5/decreases lo 
IRevoluollon Reserve 

I Revoluollon Increases/ 
deaeo5e'l lo Surplus or 

the Provision of 

1.461.120 

542.777 

6.504.295 7,962,105 

[24.108,798) m . m (23,614,407) 6,8?4,629 (16,719,778) 

?9 



E!mlnoted on rectcsslllcctlon 
tc Held for Sale 

., .. 
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Valuotlons 

The Council is not oware of any material changes in freehold and leasehold properties. The land and buildings assels held by lhe Council were originally valued at I April 1997 by the Valuation and lands Agency. in 
accordance with the statements of asset valuation practice and guidance notes of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. The Council operates a rolling programme for Its revaluation of land and buildings with 
approximately 25% of these being DIScretely revalued by physical inspection each year and the remainder being revalued by desktop exercise. 
In the 2017/18 year all assets have been valued as at 31 March 2018. The revaluation was carried out by land and Property Services Agency part of the Departmenl of Anance. 

CapHal CommHments 

A total of eight capitol contracts were entered Into during lhe period: 

Project Name CapHal 
CommHme 

nt £000's 
tCT rorTemptemore Baths Restorallon Proiect 180.000 
Cherrvvale Plavina Pitches Uoorade t,600,000 
Installation & Fabrication of Allevqoles 700.000 
Clif1onvllle Plavino Fields New Bollstoo Fenclno 200.000 
Skegoniel Parlo: Improvement Worlo:s 280.000 
Foils Parlo: Open Space Enhancement 1,200,000 
Construction of 3G Pitch or Clorendon Plavina Retds 330.000 
Cenotaph Enhancement Scheme 320,000 

Total 4,810,000 

EHects ot Changes In Esllmates 

There were no material changes in accounting estimates for property. plan I and equipment during the period. 

Surplus Assels 

Surplus assets are non-current assets that are not being used to deliver services but which do not meet the criteria to be classified os either inveslment properties or non.current assets held for sale. Assets held foc s~ ore 
assets which are not being used to deliver services and whose economic value will be realised by DISposal, ore being actively marlo:eted, and ordinarily are expected to be disposed of within 12 months of the bala nce 
sheet dale. 

Impairment 

There were material impairments to properly and investment properly during the period. Impairments over £500.000 are detailed In the table below: 

Asset Amount of impairmenl Asset class Reason 
£ 

Gasworlo:sSite (4.400.000) Investment Property Valuation at 31.03.201 B 
Connswoter Community Greenway (563.280) Community asset Valuation at 31.03.2018 
Sum of material impairments over (4,963,280) 
£500,000 

----

The Gasworlo:s Site is on Investment property under the Councirs accounting poficy. in line wilh the requirements of the Code of Practice on tocol Government Accounting in the UK. The reducllon ln value is due 1o a 
large expenditure in 2017/18 which impacts upon the DIScounted cosh flow and reduces the investment properly value. Co nnswaler Community Greenway is o community asset and in 2017/18 £563k expenditure was 
added to the carrying value of the existing assetwhichwos re-measured to£1 in the annual valuation at 31 March 2018 by the land and Properly Services valuer. The carrying value was written down to £1 and the 
expenditure treated as an impairment in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The former Andersonstown leisure Centre with a net book value of £5. 1 Bm has been demoriShed to enable construclion or a new leisure facility at Andersonstown. Clonduff Drive Community Centre and p,IQ~ ~~ 

wilh o net book value of £194k were demor.shed to facifltole the construction of a new sports centre althe site of the former Robins ens Centre . These ore represented within Note 11 a "Buildings derecognllion olhel" . 

. ...-
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

1 1 c Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets relate to lcndfill closure costs with a net book value of £nil (2016/17: £ni) and a gross cost before 
amortisation of £16,7001: (2016/17: £16.7001c); and purchased licensed software and re!oted 'mplementotion costs with o net 
boo le value of £462k (2016/17: £460k). and a gross costs before amortisation of £2409k (2016/17: £2,291 k). 

d Investment Properties 

e 

There were no additions, transfers to or from, or disposals from investment properties during the year. 

Investment Properties --:---- -~ _ ~- _ : -· :--~..,... ~-_: .• ·r-: - - - _ 31/03/2018 • - 31/03/2017 
£ £ 

I Rental Income from Investment Activities I 6,714.3181 6,796,415 
(Direct Operating expenses arising from investment properties L 1814,5191 1 (434.485) 

(Net galn/(loss) ( 5,899,799 ( 6.361,930 

HeritogeAssels -=----·::..· _ _ --~·-.·-.------·:: --~--- -- ·-··---;-

The Councirs collection of Heritage Assets (Worlcs of Art and Civic items) is reported in the Balance Sheet at e'ther Insurance 
valuation. which is based on market values, or if it is not passible to obtain a valuation, they ore measured at historic cost less 
depreciation, amortisation or impairment losses. Insurance voluatians ore updated on a periodic bas:S. On the occasion 
that no cost can be measured accurately for an item, it is held on the balance sheet at a notional value of£ I for 
stewardship purposes: there ore currently 164 of these items recorded by Belfast City Counci . 

Heritage assets·- odditions · .- -- • · - · - · - · 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 
£ £ 

Boxer Statue - Buoys Pork. Cathedral Gardens - 4,099 
Holywood Arches Artwork (Connswoter Community Greenwoy) 2.210 316,612 
John Coldwell Boxer Statue· Dunville Pork . 68,142 
Boxer Statue- Woodvole Pork . 72.086 
Tropical Ravine 3.939.088 -

-

Total - . - - ~ -. - 3.941,29B -· - ·- 460,939 - - --- - - -

A total of £3,939,088 was transferred from property, plant and equipment under construction to heritage assets during the 
year. 

There were no dispasols of heritage assets during 2017/18. 
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f Assets Held for Sale 

Cost or Valuation 
Balance os at I April 2017 
Adjustments between cost/value & depreciation/impairment 
Transferred from Non-Current Assets during year 
Assets Held or Sale Donations 

Assets Held for Sale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revaluation 
Reserve 

to Provision of Services 

ear 

lm alrment 
Balance os ot l April2017 
Adjustmen s between cost/value & depreciation/impairment 
Impairment losses/reversals token to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 
Derecognition - Dispasals 
Derecognitlon - Other 
Reclassified from Current Assets Held or ale to non current Asse s 
Transferred to roperty, Plant & Equipment during year 
Balance as at 31 March 2018 

Net Book Value 
Balance as at 31 March 2018 
Balance as at 31 March 2017 

Cost or Valuation 
Balance os at I April 201 6 
Adjustments between cost/value & depreciation/impairment 
Transferred from Non-Current Assets during year 
Assets Held for Sale Donations 
Assets Held for Sale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revaluation 
Revaluation Increases/decreases token to Surplus or Deficit on the 
Assets Hel(l tor Sale Impairment @ Cost to Provision of Services 
Derecognitlon - D1sposals 
Derecognit1on • Other 
Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale to non current Assets 
Transferred to Property Plant & Eauioment durino veor 
Balance as at 31 March 2017 

Impairment 
Balance as at I April 20 I 6 
Adjustments between cost/Value & depreciation/impairment 
Impairment losses/reversals taken to Surplus or Deficit on the ProviSion 
of Services 
Derecognillon - Disposals 
Derecogn1t1on - Other 
Reclassified from Current Assets Held tor Sale to non current Assets 
Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment during year 
Balance as at 31 March 2017 

£. 

3.197.000 3.197.000 

3.197.000 3.197,000 

3,197.000 3,197,000 

£ £ 

1.500.000 1.675.000 3,175,000 . ~ . 
1.697,000 (1.675.0001 22.000 . . . 

- . . . . . 
- . . . . . 
- - . 
. . . 
- . . 

3,197,000 . 3,197.000 

. . . 
~ - . . - -
. - -
- - -. - . 
. . . . - . 

Three non-current assets held for sale were d1sposed of dunng 2017/18, 1nclud1ng s tes at Maysfield and Pnmrose Street. 

The gain on assets classified to held for sole and sold during the year was £83k. 



h Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets 

Details of the Council's surplus assets and information about the fair value h'erarchy os at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are os 
follows: 

2017/18 Recurring fair value 
. Quoted Price_s in active markets j Other significant· Signific:_cnl · · · - Fair value as cl 

measurements using: for identical assets (Levell) I observable unobservable 31 si March 2018 i inputs [level 2) inp_uls 

I [level3) 
" 

£ £ £ £ 
Land - 2.584,001 - 2,584,001 
Buildings - 380.000 - 380,000 
Land and Buildings Combined - 4.165.000 - 4,165,000 

I Total 7,129,001 7.129,001 

2016/17 Recurring fair value Quoted Prices in active markets ·t Other significant Significant - Fair value as cl 
measurements using: for identical assets (Lcvel1) , observable unobseivcble 31 si March 2017 

! inputs (level2) inpllls 
r: (Level3) 

" ' --
£ £ £ £ 

Land - 2.584,001 - 2,584,001 
Buildings - 380,000 - 380,000 
Land and Buildings Combined - 710,000 - 710,000 

lrotal 3,674,001 3,674,001 

Surplus Assets ore considered to have enough uniqueness that they no longer con be compared to similar items that ore 
used for reference in an active market, and are valued u~ng inputs other than quoted prices that are observable. As 
such, they are valued using Level 2 ·nputs. 

Significant observable lnpufs- Level 2 

In 2017/18, all Surplus Assets were measured us"ng the some methodology as in 2016/17. The inputs used to value these 
properties have been classified as Level 2. other significant observable inputs. 

Consideration of the observable inputs used to value these Surplus Assets has led to the conclusion that the inputs used in 
2016/17 should have been classified as Level 2 using other significant observable inputs. Accordingly. the comporotives 
os at 31 March 2017 used in the 2017/18 financial statements have been restated to the corrected classification of Level 
2inputs. 

Highest and best use of surplus assets 

In estim cling the fair value of the Council's surplus assets, the highest and best use of the assets is their current use, 
reflecting best estimates of fair value given by current prices ono market for similar property in similar locations. 



Fair Value Hierarchy for Investment Properties 

Details of the Council's Investment Properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2018 a!'ld 2017 
are os follows 

2017 !1 B Recurring fair value Quoted Prices in active markets i Other sig-nificant Sig~)flc~iil~~- • ' Fair value as at 
measurements using: · for identical assets (level 1} • observable unobservable ·31st March 201 B 
~,. .... - I - . 

· inputs (level 2) • Inputs • 

l _· .. ~--:" ___ . ; ' ~ (Level:~-) , :> 
. - -·- £ . - L -··· - . - .~ -- £ 4~~-. ~~.-...~.!-"--.!..._ £ ~---- -- "·· £ - - ------

ResldenHal (Market Rental) 
Properties - - - -
Office Unlts - - - -
Commercial UnHs - 88,905,000 - 88,905,000 

I Total sa. 9o5,ooo I 88, 905,ooo I 
2016/17 Recurring lair value Quoted Prices ill active markets ; Other significant Significant:' .- - Fair valve as ol 
measurements using: for identical assets (Level 1}. observable unobscrvable 31st March 2017 
I . · · - · · inputs [lcvel2) inpvisr · 
.· .. -· ----·-··-·-·£ ________ -___ : ... _ .. :._. £ ..... : ___ £ " £ 

I Total 93, 9oo,ooo I 93, 9oo.ooo I 
Investment Properties ore considered to hove enough uniqueness so they no longer can be compared to similar items 
that are used for reference in an active marl:et, and are valued using inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable. As such, they are valued using Level 2 inputs. 

Significant observable Inputs -level 2 

In 2017/18, all Investment Properties were measured using the some methodology os in 2016/17. The inputs used to value 
these properties have been classified os level 2, other significant observable inputs. 

Consideration of the observable inputs used to value these properties has led to the cone usion thol the inputs used in 
2016/17 should have been classified os Level 2 using other significant observable ·npuls. According:y, the comporotives 
as at 31 March 2017 used in the 2017/18 financial statements have been restated to the corrected c lassification of Level 
2inputs. 

Highest and best use of Investment Properties 

In estimating the fair value of the Council's Investment Properties, the highest and best use of the assets is their current 
use. reflecting best estimates of fair value given by current prices on a market for similar property in similar locations. 
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Capitol ExpendiluTeand Capital Financing 

The total Capitol Expend1ture incurred in the year (and comparative year) is shown below- includjng the value of assets 
acquired under finance leases and PFI/PPP contracts together with the resources that hove been used to finance it. Where 
Capitol Expenditure is to be f~nonced in future years by charges to revenue os assets ore used, the expenditure results in on 
·ncreose in the CFR. o measure of the Capitol Expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. 
The CFR is analysed in the second port of this note. 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 

Capital Investment 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Investment Properties 
Intangible Assets 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capitol under 
Statute 

Investments 

Sources of Finance 
Capitol Receipts 
Government Grants and Other Contributions 
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves 

Sums set aside from Revenue: 
Direct Revenue Contributions 
Minimum Revenue Provision 

-- .-- - . - - .--- - .. --Closmg Coptlal Fmancmg Requtrcmcnl 

11 

10 

Jflt)l'l.lll; 

.._:_ ·n' 
86.207.120 

21,963,473 
1,169 

72,650 

276,792 

(2,541 .2281 
(276,792) 

[5,518, 199) 
[5,87 6, 183) 

.. 
·- ' u 

62,193,703 

45,350,882 

10,500 

3,070,139 

(8,947,963) 
(7.017,860) 

(4.296,859) 
(4,155,412) 

94,308.802 '··-· -· 86,207,130 

8,l01.672-24,013~417l 

Total net expenditure of £15,111.047 has been incurred against these projects in the year ended 31 March 
2018. 
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Total - - ------- -- - - - 326,164 ---~ 295,715 

The cost of inventories recognised os on expense and included in 'services' amounted to £669.780 
(2016/17 £663,863) 

Debtors - -- ·--- -· --
Long Term Debtors 2017/18 2016/17 

£ £ ----- -· --
Government Departments - -
Other Councils - -
Public corporations end trading funds - . 
Bodies exlemal to general govemment - -
Employee cor loons 59,5B7 88,920 
Revenue Grants - -
Capitol Grants - -
Interest Receivable - -
Capital Debtors - -
Loons and advances - -
Finance lease debtors - -
Trade debtors 736,633 789,382 
NIHE Loons 340.810 417,760 
Other - -
lmpoinment of loons and receivables - -

Tolallon-g-Term Debtors---------- -- - ---- ------_·--
_.,..._ ____ 

-
1,137,030 1,296,062 

Short Term Debtors - 2017/18 2016/17 

£ £ - -
Government Departments 320.271 1.641.010 
Other Councils 159,488 238,856 
Public corporations and trading funds . -
Bodies extemol to general govemment - -
NIHE loons 76,950 1.950,250 
Employee cor loons 58.110 66,471 
Revenue Grants 3,825,967 3,687,187 
Capitol Grants 1.411.696 5.104,875 
Interest Receivable - -
Copi!ol Debtors - -
Value Added Tax 1.978.620 2.063,521 
?repayments 4,480,065 2.990,028 
Finance lease debtors - 26.160 
Other 3,134,625 3,032,301 
Trade receivables 2.534,300 1.537,660 
lmpoinment loss- Trade receivables [454,252) (417,475) 

Total Short-Term Debtors - -----_----- --- 17,525,840 -----21,920,844" 

Total Debtors _ _ _ _ · 18,662,870 23,216,906 

' 
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Government Departments 
Other Councils 
Public corporations and trading funds 
Bodies external to general government 
Rotes clawbock 
Remuneration due to employees 
Accumulated Absences 
Receipts in advance 
Trade creditors 
Other 60.848 82.707 

- 25,2_22!550 ~-- :""..: ~ 27.094,31:11 
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The council has o target of pay"ng supplier invoices. where no other terms are agreed, is 30 days ( 11 is assumed thot 30 days 
will be 30 calendar days end 10 days will be 10wor1dng days). During the year the Counci paid 58,319 invoices totalling 
£142,055.044.27 (2016/17 61.092 invoices totalling£ 185,282,726). 

The Council paid: 
51.403 invoices with 30 day target; 
39,355 invoices within 10 day target; and 
6,916 invoices outside of the 30 day forget. 

The overage number of days token to pay suppl ers during the year was 21 days. 

Current Provisions (63.764) 217,987 2,906,973 
Long Term Provisions 32.502 1,749,239 

Total · • _ --~ - 4.301.417 168,070 (63,764) "'.':'..::::...,..,- =..;!;.~-: _;:; ·-· 250.489 .... 4.656,212: 

(493,774) - (4;546:220) 

Current Provisions (447,735) (3,271 ,385) 2,584,680 
Long Term Provisions (46,039) (1.27 4.835) 1,716,737 

Landflll closure 

The financial provision for the copping and annual monitoring costs required to meet the Council's environmental obl'gations 
under the NI EA licence has been agreed on a local Authority Deed. The discount rates applied on the provision ore based 
on National loons Fund borrowing roles which has resulted in a valuation of £3.530.260. 

Claims Management 

A provision of £1.125,952 has been mode in respect of public :ioblily. employer's Debility and other claims/lege cases notified 
but not processed. Adequate insurance arrangements ore in place covering the Councirs activities os recommended by 
the Council's Insurance Brokers. The related insurance premiums paid are accounted for in the financial statements. AI 31 
March 2018, the tololliobmty for legal cases notified but not processed amounted to on estimated maximum fability of 
£2.164,052. 



19 Fina!'lciallnslruments 

The Couno has no material exposure to any of the risk types identified below ·n its dealings with Financial Instruments. 

Cr• dlt Risk 
Credit risk crises from deposits with bonl:s and financial institutions. os well os credit exposures to the Council's customers. 
Customers ore assessed. taking into account their financial position, post experience ond other factors, with individual credit 
limits being set in accordance with intemal rarngs in accordance with parameters set by the Council. The provision for bed 
and doubtful debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by !rode debtors and, os such. there is no 
further additional esfmoted exposure to default and inability to collect. 

Trade debtors, incl1.-sive of VAT, con be analysed by age as follows: 

Three months to one year 
More then one year 

.· 
There is no h:storicol experience of default in relation to deposits with banks and other financial institutions. Therefore there is 
no estimated exposure to risk of default. 

Liquidity Risk 

As the Council has ready access to borrowings from the Deportment of Finance's Consolidated Fund, there is no significant 
risk !hot it will be unable to raise finance to meet Its commitments under Financial Instruments. The motunty analysis of 
financial iobilifes is'nduded in note 16. All trade and other poyobles ore due for payment within one year. 

Market Risk 
Interest rote risk 

The Counol is not exposed to significant risk in tenms of its exposure to interest rote movements on its borrowings os the 
majority of its borrowings ore at fiXed rotes for the life of the loans. Roles on investments ore subject to market movements. 

Foreign Exchange Risk 

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no material exposure to loss 
arising from movements in exchange roles. 

Fair Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans 
The Council is in receipt of loans from the Deportment of F'nance at concessionary interest rotes that differ from the 
prevailing market rotes. The fair vo'ue of these loans Is £41 ,315, 170 broken down os follows: 

£ 
Government Loans 41.315,170 
Total 41,315,170 
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As port of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers end other employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. 
Although these benefits will not octuo'ly be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the 
payments thol need to be c£sclosed at the lime that employees earn their future entitlement. 

The Council participates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers P~nsion Fund administered by the Northern 
Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation Committee. This is a funded scheme. meaning that the Council and 
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's liabilities with investment 
assets. 

b Transactions relating to reHrement benefits - Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Charges: 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are 
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits ore eventually paid os pensions. 

However, the charge the Council is required to make against district rotes is based on the cosh payable in the year. and the 
real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under 
regulations line. in the Movement on Reserves Statement. 

The following transactions hove been mode In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the adjustments 
between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year: 

The service cost f~gures include on allowance for odm'nistrolion expenses of £2481: { •16/17 £244k). 
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Be fast City Council employs a building block approach in determining the role of return on Fund assets. Historical markets 
ore studied and assets with higher volatility ore assumed to generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capitol 
market principles. The assumed rote of retum on each asset c ass is calculated and the overall expected rote of'return on 
assets so derived by aggregating the expected return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the Fund at 31 
Morch2018. 

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a go.n of £27,3691<: (2016/17 gain of £75.060k). 

The Council's share of the Net Pension Uablllty (Included In the Balance Sheet): 
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The llabllities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The total 
liability of£ 134,948,942 has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resull:t1g in 
a reduction of net worth of 27%. 

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The 
deficit on the Northem Ireland local Government Officers' Pension Fund will be made good by increased contributions over 
the remaining wotl<:ing life of employees. assessed by the scheme actuary. 

The total contributions expected to be mode to the Northern lre'and local Government Officers' Pension Fund by the 
council in the year to 31 March 2019 is £14,112k. 

History of experien-ce gains-end losses 

The actuarial ga·ns/losses identified os movements on the Pensions Reserve 2017/18 con be analysed into the following 
categories. measured os a percentage of assets or fiobilit:es at 31 March 2018. 

- .. ' l<ll'lll'fJf~IJI:t ltlrli!CfJf~IJI'I 

.• ·_l' .• _:_ R,_ ~ .,.. 
Experience (gains and (losses) on Assets I I 2.40% I 11.19% 
Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities I I 0.37% I -3.82% 
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e Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 
Ucbililies hove been assessed on on actuarial basis using the projected unit method, on estimate of the pensions that will be 
payable in the future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rotes. salary levels. etc. The Council's Fund liabilities 

ave been assessed by Aon Hewitl limited. on independent flml of actuaries. estimates for the Council Fund being based on 
dolo pertaining to the latest fuU valuation of the scheme os ot 31 March 2016. 

. . . .. . . . . . r.1.•1r1•r:t " I'.('JI·Y•rl .. ~ :. · ::~;i. J. ~ ::. . 
MortaiHy assumptions: 
Longevity at 65 current pensioners: Years Years 
Men 23.3 23.2 
Women 25.9 25.8 

longevity of 65 for future pensioners: 
Men 25.5 25.4 
Women 28.2 28.1 
Inflation/Pension Increase Role 2.10% 2.00% 
Salary Increase Rote 3.60% 3.50% 
Discount Role 2.60% 2.60% 
Pension accounts revaluation role 2.10% 2.00% 

Take-up of option to convert annual pension Into retirement lump sum: 
Service to April 2009 75% 75% 
Service post April 2009 75% 75% 

Pension Assumptions SensltlvHy Analysis 

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used. 

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit obligation as at 31 
March 2018 is set out below. 

In each case. only the assumption noted below is altered: all other assumpfons rema·n the some and ore summarised in the 
disclosure above. 

Funded Pension Scheme Benefits 

Discount Rate Assumption 
Adjustment to discount rote +0.1'7-p.a. ·0.1 '7op.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 671.514.000 697.649,000 
% change in the present value of the total obligation -1.90% 1.90% 
Projected service cost 20,644,000 21.875,000 
Approximate % change in projected service cost -2.90% 2.90% 
Rate of General Increase In Salaries 

Adjustment to salary increase rote +0.1'7op.a. ·0.1 '7op.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 688,251.000 680.700 
%change in the present value of the total obligolion 0.60% -<l.SO% 
Projected service cost 21.252.000 21.252.000 
Approximate %change in projected service cosf\ 0.00% 0.00% 
Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption and rate of 
revaluation of pension accounts assumption 

Adjustment to pension increase role +0.1 %p.a. ·0.1 '7op.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 693.816.000 675,232.000 
%change in the present value of the total obligation 1.40% -1.30% 
Projected service cost 21.875.000 20,644,000 
Approximate %change in projected service cost 2.90% ~2.90% 

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption 

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption• • 1 Year +1 Year 
Present value of the total obligation 704,714,000 664.310.000 
%change in the present value of the total obligation 3.00% -2.90% 
Projected service cost ,, 22.012.000 20.496.000 
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.60% -3.60% 

• A rating of + 1 year means that members ore assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base table above for an 
individuollhol is I year older then that. 
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Major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets rl?"~ .:~-:-;:rr +~ :. l!; • -, _;-_---~ 

-- . SI~:;_ ·-. ........ ~ 
11:~ 
..:a::.~"»'~~- ·. 

Equity investments 71.40% 74.50% 
Government Bonds 5.20'it. 5.40% 
Corporate Bonds 7.20% 6.10% 
Properly 10.00% 10.50% 
Cosh 4.50% 2.60% 
Other 1.70% 0.90% 
Total 100.00'7. 100.00% 

The Northern lre'and Civ'l Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defned benefit schemes but the 
Council is unable to 'den lily its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to dole actuarial valuation was 
carried out os ot 31 March 2012. This voluotion is then rev:ewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current 
conditions and rolled forward to the reporting dote of the DoF Superannuation ond Other Allowances Resource Accounts os 
ol31 March 2018. 

Anolysis of scheme assets end liabilities 

Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 
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Funded Pension Scheme Benefits- Gas Pension Fund Sensitivity Analysis 

Discount Rate Assumption 

Adjustment to discount rote +0.17o p.a. -0.17o p.a . 
Present value of the total obligation 1.203,000 1.215.000 
% change in the present value of the total obligation -0.50% 0.50% 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment accounts assumption 

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0. 1 '7o p.a. -0.17o p.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 1.215.000 1.203,000 
% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.50% -0.50% 

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption 

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption• • 1yr +1yr 
Present value of the total obligation 1.619,000 1.416,000 
%change in the present value of the total obligation 1.80% -1.50% 

Mortality assumptions: 
Members aged 85 at accounting date Years Years 
Men 6.9 6.6 
Women 7.7 7.8 

Inflation/Pension Increase Rote 2.10% 2.00% 
Discount Rate 2.60% 2.50% 
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Gas Pension Fund 

The Gas Pension Fund is maintained to provide for future pension payments to the benefiCiaries. the objective being to 
maintain a fund sufficient to provide all future anticipated payments. No contributions ere currently being paid and there 
are no service members accruing further benefits. Members' benefits are guaranteed by statute. Should the Fund's assets 
not be sufficient to provide ell the benefits, the residual llability for pension payments would fell an Belfast City Council. 

The current market value of the Fund at 31 March 201 B is assessed by the Councils actuaries. Aon Hewitl and is disclosed 
above. The Fund's Financial Statements outltned below do not take account of liabiUties to pay pensions end other benefits 
cfter31 March 2018. 

AI 31 March 2018 there were 27 pensioners left in the Gas Pensions Fund and the balances relating to the Gas Pension Fund 
ore fully consolidated in the Group financial statements. 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 31/03/2018 ;:::;1~~: 31/03/2017 
£ £ 

INCOME: 
Investment Income 9,235 15.133 

EXPENDITURE 

Pensions Paid (234.757) (290,964) 
Administration Expenses (5,699) (11.798) 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year (231,221) (287,629) 

NET ASSET MOVEMENTS 
Brought forward balance at 01.04.2017 1.337,519 1.404.251 
Unreallsed gain at 01.04.2017 179.028 386,179 
Opening Value of Fund 1,516.547 1,790,430 

Add Contribution from City Council 
Add surplus/(deficil) for the year (231.221) (287,629) 
CHANGE IN MARKET VAlUES OF INVESTMENTS 
Realised gain for year 0 222,888 
Unreclised gain/(loss) for year (12260) (209.142) 

Closing value of fund 1,273,066 1.516,547 

FINANCED BY: 
UK Index Unked Investments 433.182 445.585 
Cosh deposits end at bank 836,071 1,067.292 
Debtors 3.813 3,670 

1,273.066 1,516.547 
Bank Balance 
Creditors 
Closing~~u~ of fund 

The f~gures above ·nclude a pension liab-ity in respect of Be' fast Waterfront & Ulster Ha I Limited ( BWUH lldJ. BWUH ltd 
become a parfcipaling employer in the NlLGOSC scheme on 1 April2016. Belfast City Council has agreed to include and 
disclose the net liobinty under this scheme up to 31 March 2018 within the net liability total for Belfast City Council. 
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Analysis of Donated Assets Account 
n-e balance of the Donated Assets Account represents donations received that hove yet to be recognised os income, as 
they have conditions attached to them, which wi I require the donated assets to be returned, if conditions are not met. The 
balances at the year end ore os follows: 

This amount of £250k in capitol receipts unapplied relates to the proceeds from a d'tsposalto the NIHE wh!ch w'll be used to 
r r-once 0 playground. 

Analysis of Capital Grants Receipts In Advance Balance 
The balance of Capitol Grants Receipts in Advance represents grants rece·ved that have yet to be recognised as income. as 
they hove conditions attached to them, which will require the grant to be repaid. if conditions are not met. The balances at 
the year end ore as follows: 

The arc21 Joint Committee has. with the approval of their Part:cipant Councils. entered into a Contingent Uability 
Undertaking with the bidding consortium in the procurement for the Residential Waste Treatment Project. Payments made, if 
any, in accordance with this undertaking will be funded by the Participant Councils. 

The financial provision for the copping and annual monitoring cost of the londfill site. required to meet the Council's 
environmento' obligations under the NI EA licence, has been agreed o n a local Authority Deed and disclosed in Note 18. 
The remaining area not covered by NIEA rcence may require specific copping depending on the future use of this land. The 
impact of any future copping of this area on the liabilities of Belfast City Council is uncertain and therefore no provision for 
any such costs has been made. 
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Qther-c~~tipow;Et~c!~s_u~e!~":"-~~~~~-~ 
Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services ~ _ . ••. i_ ::...:C·:~' _., ._ .::_, __ j 

- -

Adjust for items in~Juded in the_ net surp~us ~r ~efi~il ~n th·e ~:;''r.,... ~;~;;;'RJ-'~": . ;.."'r .~"'"1 
provision ot. services thotor_e_inv esfing_o n d financing~: _. _ _- ---~· N oles l _V:_,_ -. -~! 2017/1 B ~...:__1 201 6/17 

£ £ 

Purchase of short-term (not considered to be cosh 
eq uivalents) and long-term investments (includes 
Investments In associates. joint ventures end subsidiaries) 276.792 3.070,139 

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be c osh 
equivalents) and long-term Investments (includes 
investments In associates, jolnt ventures and subsidiaries) . . 
Proceeds from the sole of PP&E.Investment property and 
intangible ossels 8o (3.445.146) (41 1.613) 
Capitol grants included in 'Taxation & non-specifiC grant 
income" lOd (2,541 .228) (8,947.963) 

:4-~·. ~-~~-::r *~ ;J,':~A.; ... ~-·~,~~ 
. ~ . !~\i'Jl;!Cf'··· 

\ \ 
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d 

For the purposes of the cosh flow statement, cosh and cash equ'volents include cosh on hand and In bonlc and 
short term deposits and investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bonlc overdrafts. Cosh 
and cash equivo ents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconci ed 
to the related items in the Balance Sheet os follows: 

Cosh and Banlc balances 1.918.212 2,317,266 

Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cosh Equivalents) 8,500,000 5.000,000 

Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 
Banlc Overdraft 

~osh1 Flow Statement: Oi:!erotiii§" A(,:tjvilies _ .:5:":'.~~-f~':'.':..- ,_-_ . ~; .J: 201] /18 _ • ·~_2_21 ~~1! 
The cosh flows from operating activities include: £ £ 
Interest received 126,243 148,000 

Interest paid - -

Castiflowsfrcml'lnvesfiiig · ~~Jiv_i_fi£s."' _ __ • ·:~:~-- __ •;:::. .. _ 20J70.8--...i:' 2016/17; 
£ £ 

Purchase of PP&E.Investment property and Intangible 21.0t9,574 53,029,485 
Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considered to be 
cash equivalentsl - -
Purchase of Long Term Investments 276.792 3.070,139 
Other Payments for Investing Activities 1.682.860 1.609.816 

Proceeds from the sole of PP&E. Investment property and 
intangible assets (3,445,1 461 (411.6131 
Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to 
be cosh equivolentsl - -
Proceeds from Long Term Investments - -
Capitol Grants and Contributions Received (2.541 .2281 (8.947,9631 
Other Receipts from Investing Activities . -
Net ~ash·n¥s.!!Oiilllnveslft!gAclivities _,_~~~~-~--·-:·-:-· __ : ~ _ • _--:-:.::-::::=~.:·~ 16,992,852 _-:-:.,.!'"48.349,864 . 

Cosh Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing 
Other Receipts from Financing Activities 
Cosh payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a finance 
lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI contracts 

Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing 
Other payments for Finandng Activities 

5.000,000 5,000,000 

(4,844,7361 (3.153,7511 
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26 a;~ma~~~~~;(~J[~~~~~~~:=:=~~~~~~=:~~~~~~~~JlJ I)~ 
lhese are capitol receipts which hove originated primarily from the sole of assets which hove not yet been used to 
finance capitol expenditure. 

lhe Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from frxed asset sales and other monies defined by 
statute as capitol receipts. These are briglna ly credited to the Comprehensive Income end Expenditure Statement 
os port of the gain/loss on disposal and posted out vie the Movement In Reserves Statement to the Capitol Receipts 
Reserve. The reserve Is written down when resources ore applied to finance new capitol expenditure or set aside to 
reduce an authority's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute). 

f:.flpl!_al. Receipts _!ese~e 

At 1 A rtl 
Movement 
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 

b Capital Grants Unapplied account 

4.11 
4.12 

31 /03/2018 ' :' 31 /03/1Ql.Z 
£ 

1.632.457 1.263.369 : 

3.107.000 369.088 ' 

Where a cop"tol grant or contribution (or port thereof) has been recogniSed os income in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. but the expend lure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not 
been Incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution shell be transferred to the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account (within the usable reserves sect" on of the balance sheet). reflecting its status os a cop" tal 
resource ovoilo ble to finance expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

When. cl o future dote. the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is incurred, the grant or 
contribution (or port thereof) shall be transferred from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capitol 
Adjustment Account. reflecting the application of capitol resources to finance expenditure. This transfer Is also 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement or In the notes to the accounts. 

- -

Caflilal Grants,UnaP.fJiied account '!' ,, :-.:.o ~;::1 Notes 
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This fund was established under section 56 of the local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the eel 
wcs repealed under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothem Ireland) 2011. 

12 

The movement end purpose of these funds Is outlined below: 
1o~~llf!ve~mentFund~~~- •:t .,.':"'F• '·~·~.q~~;-;- ...-.-.-"'?---~ 31/03/2018 
.!.."_.~ _:: ______ ~:.~ .. --=--.. : .-~-~~-...::...·~~·'"r· .. __ ,__._. __ .!...~'"'-·: __ . .. -··-.:...·. -- -~--:.-!' __ . £ 
Open1ng balance 4 056 629 . 
Add: new contributions to fund -
Less: financing drown down from fund (1,755.601] . :<..: . "'"P' ... 11., • • : 

Local Investment Fund (LIF] is a key port of the Investment Programme that provides funding for smcllerinilictives 
focusing on physical work on buildings or facilities Vvilhin communities. The balance on this fund as cl 31 March 2018 
is £2.301.028. 

Belfast Investment Fund~~~."'-'t;•-vc..,...~- r~7·..,·~--~~ ,- ~,- .,,.,~~·•31/03/2018 

~-~-~~-~.:.. -·~:;.._:._::.~~ -(-l~·- __ :_·~- ~ .. -- __ .. __ =~-- -~~L J .. __ _:_;_~_;·~- .. ~:·_ .. :..~:-~~~£_ 
Open ng balance 
Add: new contributions to fund I I I 

3,810.715 
3.27o.ooo 1 

less: transfer to Soclal Outcomes fund I I I (3 •. ~.!E 

There is c balance of £4,080,715 on the Belfast Investment Fund at yecrend 31 March 2018. This fund was 
estcbriShed to support partnership projects across the City. 

CityCenlrelnvestmentFund~~~~---- -.--. ~ ~--vNote~31/03/2018 

f· .:.· - -- :~ -:~__:!..._,., .. !...:_.~ .. ".:.../ .:....:.. •• ~:::_~~-·~:-- ·--- -- --~·.' .. -~:-.pa: _ _ .;~ ···-- · _: _:_ . ·~'!:-~..::....~£ 
p g 15 699 861 

Add: new contributions to fund -
Less: amounts drown down from fund (412,159) . "·" _...s>-~l.. n."Wl:r•.t•Y• 

City Centre Investment Fund (CCIF) is c fund to support the Belfast City Centre Regeneration Investment Plans. The 
proposed investment principles for the CCIF are as follows: 
- the project should make a significant impact on the City Centre economy in terms of ~gross value added'' and job 
creation 
- the project should make positive and net contribution to the business rates Income received by Belfast City 
Council 
During the year Belfast City Council used this fund to support ongoing end potential City Centre regeneration 
projects. The balance on CCIF et yecr end 31 March 2018 is £15.287,702. 

Social Outcomes Fund is set up to support City Centre projects which might not generate a direct financial return 
but which would enhance the overall City Centre offer end support the attraction of investment into the City 
Centre. The balance on this fund as cl 31 March 2018is £4m,v.ith c £3m contribution In year from Be~fast 
Investment Fund. 
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d leisure Mobilisation Fund 
This fund wos established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972. however this section of the act 
wos repealed under the local Government Finance Act (Nothem Ireland) 2011. 

At 1 April 
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 
Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance 
Capital Expenditure 

(240.666) 

12 

£ 
2.000.000 

(55.000) 

The Leisure Mobilisation Fund is a fund to support the leisure Transformation Programme. This fund will cover 
programme level costs including communications, engagements and procurement costs. 

between statutory & other reserves & the General 

to BWUH Subvention fund 

£ £ 
Election Fund 513.919 357.518 
BWUH Subvention Fund 169.638 -
BWUH Sinking Fund 183,970 283.411 
Total 867,527 640,929 

The movement and p~rpose of these funds Is outlined below; 

Election Fund ~------,-·-· ~- --"··,-..·--:--,-:--·-.- -. T • ~.- -..,-7"" ~-- - 31 /03/ 2018 
t~-~6'. ~·--~ ·---· ----~·----·-·_·_·'~· .... __ -- ··:··_·- .... :._ .. ~::.: . .:..:::__ _____ ~, £ 
Open ng balance 
Add: new contributions to fund I 
less: financing drown down from fund J 

I 
I 

35 .58 
156,401 

This reserve Is used to eq<~ollse (smooth) the cost of elections by building up o fund to cover the costs of future 
elections by making contribuflons. os end when required, to the reserve. 

BWUHSubventionFund :'7T" x:· ~~- c• ~-;:u.j~-~.:-:~.-:"' -·31 /03/2018 
~~--.-· - - -.· ~ . . •' ' "•· ;y, - C.• -.i- "". •I ·-· ,~,.,.-

~::,:. _::~;-:.-.:·:-_-::_-~: .--::!.~-~--:.~-··-~·-: ... -.:.!....:; ~-~ £ 
Opening balance -
Add: new contributions to fund 300,903 

Less: amounts drawn down from fund (131.265) . _ ... ~'r\~i'lll\l~.r'f""T"'::- iF'!'" ,A . ~'3f" ~.,r~·::t-. ";(.~ ~ -""'= 
BWUH Subvent;on fl.nd was estobUshed to support notional and International corporate organisations In bringing 
their conferences fo Be fast 

BWUH Sinking Fund (renamed from BWUH Subvention fund In 2016/17) :l a fund to support planned maintenance 
and future capltal works of the new exhibition centre at Waterfront Ha:J. 

. . 
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This reserve shows 1he accounting cos1 in the yeor of provicfng serv.ces in accordance with genera ly accepted 
accounting prodices. rother then the amount to be funded from District Roles. Cound s raise rotes to cover 
expenditure In accordance with regulcfioru; this may be d'fferenl from the accounting cost. Ttie taxation position is 
shown in the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

calculated ·on.on.accounting basis and f~nonce costs 
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 

This fund representsihesurplus of Income over expenditure. 11 con be used to supp ement income and unexpected 
expenditure in future years. Of the £24,4081:.£10.7381: relotesto expenditure committed of the year end (16/17 
£20.9891<. £7.6351: committedJ. 

\ 
l 
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The Capitol Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences ariSing from the different arrangements for 
accounting far the consumption of non·current assets ond for the acquisit'on. construction or enhancement of 
those assets under statutory provisions. 

The Account is debited with the cost of acquis'tion, construct on or enhancement os depreciation, Impairment 
losses and amortisations ore charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expend lure Statement. with reconciling 
postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to on historic cost basis. 

The Account contains accumulated ga'ns and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated 
ossels that hove yet to be consumed by the Counci . 

•he Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007. 
the dole that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 

At 1 April 
Applied CopHo l Grants 
Unapplied Copjtoi'Grants transferred to CAA in year 
Direct Revenue' financing 

Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 
Statutory Provision for financing Copllollnvestment 
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capitol under 
Disposal of fixed Assets/ Capitol Soles 
Capitol Receipts used to finance capitol expenditure 
Other Movements 
Transfell between Capitol Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & 
CAA to finance capitol expenditure 

b Rnanclallnstrumenls Adjustment Account 

At 1 April 
Difference between finance and other costs and income 

• 
The Council has no fronsoclions that would require use of this account. 

\ 

10 

4, 12 

11 
4,12 
4,12 
4.11 
4.12 

12 

£ £ 
427.622.657 433.923.306 

2.541.226 6.947.963 

5.518.199 4,296,859 

(20,234,636) (30.051.043) 
5.876. 163 4,155,412 

{6.612.076) 4.122.115) 

3.676.079 7,602.136 

276.792 3.070.139 .. .. 
31 /03/2018~31 /03/2017 

£ £ 

' \ 
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c RevoluolionReserve =-·-~-:· -- -- _ - -:- -.=·." -;~-;..:.::::_. -~ -_--=....:,_:-;._~--, ~ 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains mode by the Council arising from Increases in the value of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains ore: 

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains ore lost 
- used in the provision of services and the gains ere consumed through depreciation. or 
- disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the dote the reserve was created. 
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated Into the balance on the Capitol Adjustment Account. 

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation [upwards or downwards) of individual 
assets. All such revatuations (excluding impairment tosses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the 
Provision of Services ore mirrored In Other Comprehensive Income end Expenditure. 11 is a fundamental principle of 
this account that it never becomes negative. If en asset was held at current value when derecognised. the 
balance held on the Revaluation Reserve Is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

--- -- -- ·- _____ Notes~~--__ :.: ?Y_9.3/2018 - : 3_1 /~_3/~017 Revaluation Reserve . ~· --
£ £1 

At l April 138.508.289 123.817,218 
Revaluation & Impairment 11 24,906,284 18,228,570 
Movements from associates & joint ventures - -
Depreciation on revaluation (3,886,080) (3,537,499) 

---- ----- - --- ---

At 31 March ·- ·- - - - - -- - 159.528.493 ___ 138.508.289 ; 

d Available lor Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 

The Counc il has no transactions that would req~e use of this account. 

e Pension Reserve - -- - · · '- - - • 

Pension Reserve -
N~~es _ -. 31/03/2018 3 1/03/2017 --- ·- ----- --~------- - ------

£ £ 
At 1 April (125.832,942) (91 ,099,942] 
Net M ovements on Pension Reserve 20 [10,071.000] (3,179,000] 
Reva luation & Impairment 20 (1.014,000) (29,494,000) 
Gas pension & BWUH movement (30,000) (2,060,000) 

At 31 Marc h- ---- · -- - -- - - (136,947.942) (125 832. 942) 
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Deferred CapHal Receipts Account 

The Deferred Capitol Receipts Account records copilot advances receivable where on amount equal to the 
advance is Included os o deferred capitol receipt. These amounts ore written down each year by the amount of 
capitol debt repaid to the Council in !hot year. 

. . . .. . . - . . . . . . :~.· IJI:f#ll ; tXJ#ltlr; 

£ £ 
All April I - -
Other Movements I - -
Al3l"Marcti~A'lr"~".;>;-::-~~.~;:r. ••• -;~. :?.~:'"·~·-~~,;_i~;:li: 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences !hot would otherwise arise on the General Fund 
balance from accruing for compensated absences eomed but not token ·n the year e.g. staff annual leave 
entitlement carried forward cl the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements ore expected to require that 
the Impact on the General Fund is neulrarsed by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account 

Ac-cumulaled Absences Account~!--"""'"'~ ~~ales - 31 (0~/JQ.l.!! ~-::: JyOJ/2017 
£ £ 

At 1 April (1.374.835) (1.302.728) 
Difference between finance and other costs and income 
calculated on on accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 30,605 172.107) 

. -~ ·~-..-- :y~~ .. ;;;.~."~·"'""· '"":· .. • . ; 
h Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 

The Provisions Discount Role Reserve covers the arrangement, put In place by the Deportment under its 
amendment to the 2017/18 acc ounts direction (see circular LG 05/2018), to accommodate changes In the current 
value of the annual calculation of long term provisions for londfill costs, which arise os c result of changes to the 
nterest rotes used to discount these provis"ons end londfill cosh flows be'ng increased for inflation. 

Provision_s_Dj_ss_ount Role Reserve:_ - · ~ .:_ : ~ :-: .• ~ --.-, ~ .... ~~~ Notes!__:_ __ .__. ___ !lf.Q.3/201.!! ~ • 31 / 03 '20 T 7 
£ £ 

At 1 April - -
Difference between finance and other costs and Income 
calculated on on accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements !217.987) -
Other Movements - -

At 31-March }i·~:.-~:!..-~1:~::.... .. :.-" :~· ~~J::~:7".li~~2f7·:987J .~ ~-!~~~I;;.. 

. . 
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28 Significant Trading Operations 

2? 

30 

The Council considers a trading operation exists where the service it prov'des Is competitive l.e the user always has 
the choice to use an alternative supplier to the Council and the Counc·l charges the user on a basis other than a 
straightforward recharge of the Couno1s costs in supplying the service. The Council uses a variety of charging 
mechanisms such os quoted lump sums. fiXed periodical charges or rotes, or a combination of these. 

In deciding whether a trading operation is s'gnificont the Council takes both finanda and non-financial criteria into 
account. 

Rnancial criteria token into account in decid'ng whether trading operations ore sign'Fcoht to the Counc I ore: • 
• the magnitude of each Individual trading operafon's turnover when compared with the Council's net revenue 

budget 

• the risk of fnoneiolloss the Councl may be exposed to in providing the service to the user. 

Non-financial crtoria token into account In deciding whether trading operot'ons ore s'gnificantto the counci? ore: 

• the importance of each individual trading operotlon to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets and 
improving performance. 

• the exposure of the Council to service reputotionolloss risk by providing the service 

· whether the provision of the service s ~kely to be of interest to the Counci.'"s key stokeholders and their needs. 

In applying the aforement:oned criteria, the Council considers the etting of industrial estates to be a significant 
trading operation. 

These significant trading operations form port of Note 9e to these financial statements. 

The Council provides administration services to 8e,fost One 810 ltd and Destination CQ BID Ltd. Belfast One B D Ltd 
pay on administrofon to the Council for these services. This fee amounted to £131: for 2017/18. 

During 2017/18 Belfast City Council mode o financial contribution of £276.792 (16/17 £3,070, 139) to BellelllP relating 
to the redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Bu!lding. 

This contribution to llP Is included In the long term Assets of Be~fost City Council. This represents 46% of the net 
assets of the llP which is included in Belfast City Council's consolidated balance sheet . 

- .- !..:,_.:!_- .-~:;._e 
long term assets 3,058.283 
Current assets 188.179 
Current liabilities 100,469 
long term liabilities -
Net Assets 3,346,931 

On 1 April 2016, the operations of Waterfront Hall and Ulster Hall were transferred to a company BWUH Umited. 
Belfast City Council hold the entire share capital of this company, 1 ord:nory shore at £1 each. Belfast City Council 
entered into on agreement with BWUH Umited under which the Council pays the company o management fee for 
the operation of Bellost Waterfront and Ulster Hall. Payments to and from the company ore outlined in Note 31.5. 
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A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether c 
price Is charged. Related Party Transection exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely 
because of its economic dependence on the Coundl or the Government of which it forms part. A related party Is 
one that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant Influence over the other party in making 
financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related party entity and another entity ore subject 
to common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and 
Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the 
Council and the entity is solely that of on Agency (see note 29) these ore not deemed to be Related Party 
Transactions. 

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below. 

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial end operating polides. In the 2017/18 financial year the 
Council commissioned £2,412,431 (2016/17 £2.582,205) of works and services from Visit Belfast in which Councillors 
hove an Interest. The Council entered Into these contracts in full compliance with the Council's standing orders and 
codes of conduct. 

The Council also paid grants of £1.096,916(2016/17 £1.104,891) too number of organisations in which Councillors 
and Council officers hod an interest. These grants were mode with proper consideration of declaration of Interests. 

During 2017/18the Council hod expenditure of £263,533 (2016/17 £227.746) to other Councils and Income received 
of £980,249(2016/17 £614.866) from other Councils. of which £159,488 (2016/17 £238.856) was outstanding at 31 
March 2018. These amounts mainly related to services provided. 

31.1 Paymenl5 to Community Groups 
Belfast City Council mode payments to the following Community Groups !hot hove Councillors as part of their 
committee structure; 

31.2 Joint Committees 
Belfast City Council mode payments to the following Joint Committees; 

The origins of crc21 con be traced back to June 1999, when o small number of Council representatives agreed that 
c joint approach was the best way to defiver on effective waste management strategy for the region. Sy 2000. 11 
Councils had Joined together from the eastern Region Waste Management Group. which was eventually renamed 
orc21. 

~t present arc21 has successfully been awarded and is managing waste mon~gement contracts on behalf of 
Councils with a value in the region of £200m. 
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31.3 Other OrganlsaHons 

£ £ 
I 1.248 1.200 
2 259,842 274,387' 
3 87,892 47,21 6 ! 
1 37.601 41.388: 

ltd 1 308.363 373.925: 
2 62,380 32,182 
1 600 600 ' 
6 0 1,320' 
3 0 600 , 
4 600 600 
2 600 600 
1 35,000 52,500 

Greate r Shonl:ill Pcrtne~hi Board 4 34,096 29,527 
Groundwork NI 30.400 2.000 

2 0 600 
2 600 600 
2 0 600 
4 2,329 2,868 
2 2,360 0 
1 600 600 
1 35,357 35.000 
1 100,000 101.180 
4 600 600 
6 3.560 3,560 

NIAmeni Council 1 0 2.330 
NI Local Government Association 9 91.088 90,216 , 
Somme Advise Council 3 1.200 8,040: 
Visit Belfast 4 2.412.431 2,258,205. 

2 600 652i 

3,509,347 ..... 3,363,095 

31.4 AcHve Belfast UmHecl 
Belfast O ly Council with Active Belfast Umited entered into on agreement with GLL for the provision of leisure 
services. These financial statements include expenses of £8.606.329 j2016/17 £7.249.222) for the provision of these 
services in the year ended 31 March 2018. 

31.5 Car Loans to council Officers 
The Council makes cor loons available to employees who are designated essential cor users. The total amount 
outstanding In respect of car loans to designated employees as at31 March 2018 was £117,698 (2016/17 £155,391). 

Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Umlled 
With effect from 1 April2016 the Council transferred the operations of Belfast Waterfront Hall and Ulster Hall to a new 
company BWUH Umited with the Council being the so•e shareholder In this new company. The Council is 
represented by one officer out of the total Board of 6 Directo~. During 2017/18 the Council invoiced BWUH ltd for 
£2,028,453 for expenditure incurred on it's behalf end also received invoices from the Company for £3,433,273 
mainly for the management fee. At31 March 2018, £53,613 was owed to the company by the Council and \ 
£300.362 receivable from the company. \ 

Beltel UP 
During 2017/18, Belfast City Council mode a financial contribution of £27 6,792 ( 16/17 £3.070,139) to Belle I LLP relating 
to the redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Building representing 46% of the net assets of the LLP ( os outlined In 
Note 30). The Council is represented by two office~ on the Management Board of the LLP and Timec 1523 Umited Is 
also represented by two membe~ on the Management Board. 
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Belfast City Council 
Group Movement In Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Other Fund 
General Fund Balances and Capitol Receipts 

Summary Reserves Reserve 
£ £ £ 

- ---

Total Usable 
Reserves 

£ 

Total Unusable 
Reserves 

£ 

Total Council 
Reserves 

£ 
Balance os of 1 Apri1201 & - _- _ --::. ·:~19.181.234 -- 27,&79.322 1.263 369.-sl'48.123. 925 · · 465,337.854 ·• __ 513,461,779. 
Movement In reserves 
during the year 
Surplus/ (Deficit) on the (17,067,256) (17.067,256) ( 17.067.256) provision o f services 
Other Comprehensive (11.265.430) ( 11.265.430) Income and Expenditure 
Toto! Comprehensive (17,067,256) (17,067,256) (11.265,430) (28,332.686) Income and Expenditure 
Adjustments between 
accounting basis & 20.287.583 (3.070.139) 369,088 17.586.532 (17.552.405) 34.127 
funding under regulations 
Net Increase before 
transfers to Statutory and 3,220,327 (3,070,139) 369,088 519,276 (28,817,835) {28.298,559) 
Other Reserves 
Transfers lo I from 
Statutory and O ther (2.260.540) 2.260,540 
Reserves 
O ther movements 844,729 283.411 1.128,140 2.603.150 3.731 .290 
Increase/ (Decrease) In 
ye or 1,804,516 (526,188) 3&9,088 1,647.416 (26,214,&85) (24,567,269) 

sola nee os ol31 March 2011 :- : -~. 20,985.750 ~ :: l7.15J .134 1!631..457 '. -] ~-49.771'34 1~439.123.170--_48B,894.511 
Movement In reserves 
during the year 
Surplus/ (Deficit) on the (18,059,757) (18.059,757} (18.059,757) provision of services 
Other Comprehensive 23.892,284 23.892.284 Income and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive (18,059,757) {18,059,757) 23,892,284 5,832,527 
Income and ExpendHure 
Adjustments between 
accounting basis & 22,169,302 (276.792) 3.107.000 24.999.510 (24,684.708) 31<4.802 
tunding under regulations 
Net Increase before 
transfers to Statutory and 4,109,545 (276,792) 3,107,000 6,939,753 (792.424) 6,147.329 
Other Reserves 
Transfers to I from 
Statutory and Other (1.430,134) 1.430,134 
Reserves 
Other movements 739.734 (65.170) 674.564 (247.986) 426,578 

Increase/ (Decrease) In 3,41t,145 1,088,172 3,107,000 7,614,317 (1 ,040,41 0) 6,573,907 year 

Balance asat'31 March 2018 ;::_'?'1!~~: 24,404,895 - 28.241 ,306 . . - 4.739.457 - _-- 57,385.658 _ 438.082,760~495.468,418 . 
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Belfast City Councl 
Group Comprehensive Income and ExpendHure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Service Expenditure 

Strategic Poficy & 
Resources 
City Growth & 
Regeneration 
People & CommuniHes 

Other Operating 
Expenditure 

financing and Investment 
Income ond Expenditure 

(Surplus) or Defcit on 
Discontinued Operations 

Gross Expenditure 

Notes £ 

2 62655.671 

2 36.703,673 

2 106.898,004 
7 

8 5,166.932 

9 10.651.076 

Gross Income Net Expenditure Gross 
Expenditure 

£ £ £ 

(9,437,721) 53,217,950 58,601.852 

(15.897.316) 20.806,357 33.664,626 

(15.984.609) 90.913.395 126,608.580 
7 

5,166,932 3,710.502 

(6.894,611) 3.756.405 4.996.832 

Gross Income Net Expenditure 

£ £ 

(9,972.973) 48.628,879 

(12.145,639) 21.518.987 

(15.004,163) 

3.710.502 

{13.970.237) (8,973,405) 

Net Operating Expenditure ·,~:"·_ -.""i:-· ~ 229.911.052 ::., (53,809,678) - 176.101,374 :::.:'234,802,794':...-- ~ (57,191,242) ~-: .. 177.611,552 : 

Taxation and Non-Specific 
Grant Income 

(Surplus)/Delicit on 

10 

revaluation of non-current 11 
assets 

Surplus/(Deficit) arising on 
revaluation of available- 27 
for-sale linanciol assets 

Remeasurements of the 
Net Defined Benefit 
Uabmty (Asset) 

20 

(21.440) ( 158.020.177) I 158.041.6171 

(24,906.284) 

1.01 4.000 

Olher Comprehensive Income and ExpE! nailure"'"':'"".~ ~."':'"-~ -:---~-_1: (23 892.284) 

1.672.075 (162216,371) (160.544,296) 

( 18.228.570) 

29,494,000 

• • I ! 
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Belfast City Council 
Graup Balance Sheet as al31 March 2018 

Fixed Assets 
long Term Investments 
Investment in Associates 
and Joint Ventures 
Long Term Debtors 

Short Term Investments 
Inventories 
Short Term Debtors 
Cosh and Cosh Equivalents 
Assets Held for Sole 

Bank Overdraft 
Short Term Borrowing 
Short Term Creditors 
Provisions 

Long Term Creditors 
Provisions 
Long Term Borrowing 
Other Long Term Uobilitles 
Donated Assets Account 
Copilot Grants and Receipts in Advance 

USABLE RESERVES 
Capitol Receipts Reserve 
Capitol Fund 
leisure MobllisolionFund 
Other Balances and Reserves 
General Fund 

UNUSABLE RESERVES 
Capitol Adjustment Account 
Revoluollon Reserve 
Pensions Reserve 
Accumulated Absences Account 
Provisions Discount Role Reserve 

£ 
670.790,673 

433.000 

1,137.030 

326.164 
18,275,761 
14.490.997 

£ 
649,232.774 

«5.585 

1.296.062 

295,715 
22.830,338 
11.052.247 
3,197.000 

33.092.922~Ji.375.:3Cll' 

4.156.529 
30.300.049 

2.906,973 

163.462 
31.997.062 

2.584.680 

37.365.55:~·3.(,/45.'22~ 1 

60,848 
1.749.239 

32.604.494 
136,947,942 

10.001 
1.247.132 

4.739,457 
25.669.445 

1.704.334 
867.527 

24.404,695 

417.064.426 
159,526,493 

(136.947.942) 
(1,344.230) 

{217.967) 

62.707 
1.716.737 

36,444.276 
125.832.942 

tO.OOt 
623.323 

1.632.457 
24,567.205 

1.945.000 
640.929 

20.965.750 

427.822.658 
136.508,289 

(125.832.942) 
(1 ,374835) 
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Belfast City Counci 
Group Cosh Flow Statement ol31 March 2018 

Net Deficit on the provision of services 

AcfJUstment for non-cosh movements 

Adjust for items included In the net surplus or deficit on the provision 
of services that are investing and financing activities 

Net cash flows from operating activities · 

Cosh flows from Investing Activities 

Net Cosh flows from Financing Activities 

•~M"·'3's·M4·''·'44'4·tii'·«4·ti·'·'' '·hffl·'4·'•'fl¥1Mftt : 
Cosh and cosh equivalents ollhe beginning of the reporting period 

£ 
I 1 8.059.757) 

44.479,723 

15.709.5821 

£ 
I 17.067.2561 

49.544.331 

16.289,437) 

20,710,384 :: •. :: 26,187,638 ' 

{I 7.426.898) 148.687,1471 

155.264 1,646,249 

11.052.247 31.705.507 

C~h and cosh equivalents at the end ofthe reportingperiod~14.490,997 if 1 1,052.247J 
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lelfasf Clfy Councn 
Nohu to the Group Financial Slalemenlt 
fOJ THE YEAl ENDED 31 MAICH 2011 

Gl Group Accounts 

The Grovp A ccounting Policies oro the some os the Council policies end hove not boon repeated again In these 
Notes. The exception to th!J Is In relation to Reti'oment Benonts which hove been treated In BWUH Umlled os a 
defined c:ont r1butlon scheme os the llobl611es of the NlGOSC scheme remain with Bolfosl Clfy Council and hove 
boon dlsclosed In BoUoJI Clfy Council's flnondol statements. 

Slnc:o there oro no slgnlflecnt ehcnges to the Consolidated Grovp Balance Shoot os compered to the Councils 
Balance Sheet, the majority of the suppa11ng notes hove not been doomed necessary. 

Gl Combining Entitles 
8ellast Watettronlutsler HoD United (IWUH Ud) 

llo!fosl Wolorfront Ulster Hall Umlled Is a company Incorporated under the terms of the Companies Acts to operglo 
the Belrost Waterfront and Ulster Hell. The Authority Is the principal shareholder In the company holding I ordinary£ I 
shores and representing l!XI'K. of the Issued shore capitol. Under accounting standards. the Authority hos a 
controlflng Interest In this c ompany. The financial results for the company hove been Included In the grtlVp accounts 
os a subsld1cry. 

Net tlobiiHies of the company were £3.7k at 31 March 2018. The profit on ordlnory activities before taxation for the 
period to 31 March 2018 was £1. No dividend payments wore due to, or received by, the Authority In respect of Its 
Investment. 

The latest sol of ccc:ountsls for the year to 31 March 20111 end hos on unquol ned audit certlllcolo. 

IEI.TEL U.r 

For the purposes of economic rogonemtlon os port of the City Centre Regeneration objectives the Council modo a 
finonclcl contribution In the form of a loan of now totolftng £3.~6.931 os at year ended 31 March 2018, to Bellol UP 
relating to the redevelopment of the Bellml Telegrtlph buldlog. This c ontr1butlon represents 46" of the not assets of 
Bello! UP which have been lncludod In the Council's group bolonc:e sheet end the breakdown of the net ossols Is 
Included In Note 30 lnveslments In AsJoclates. 

GOJ Pension fund 

The csset of UO.OOO In respect of the Gos Pension Fund Is disclosed and recognised In Belfast City Councn·s balance 
sheet and Note 20 Retlremenl Benefits disclosures. The Group balance shoot has Included the assets and liabilities 
giving rise le this llabllty: 

[ 

long term aS>els .133.182 
Current assets 839JIIl4 

lon; term llabiiHes 1.213.()66 

...,assel 60,000 

The Council has not consolidated Its Interests In Active Belfast Umlled, Belfast Gasworks Management Co lld and 
Arc21 os the Counclrs shore of these bolcnc:o shoots Is not doomed moterlcllo the grtlUp accounts ot this point In 
time. 

Nature al c:ornblnaHon 
To od110nc:e council objectives, the council has established one limited c ompany In the c...,nt f100nclcl year end 
modo a financial contribution to a UP. os outftned obovo. 

Flnanc:lat Impact of combtnoflon 

The effect of the Inclusion of the subsldlorles and cssoc:loles In 2017/18 wos to reduce the Coundt's reserves and net 
assets by £3.7k representlog the not csselln the c:onso6doHng enlfQe,. 
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Gl AdJustments between on Accounting lasts and funding lasts under legulaHons 
Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded 
when determining the Movement an the General fund Balance for the year, 

Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and ExpendliUfe Statement but required by statute to be excluded 
wben determining the Movement on the General fund lalonce lor the year. 
lmponnenls (losses & revenols) 
of non-current assets 

Oerecognltlon (other than 
dlspo$OIJ or non-current <USots 

Rovoluollon 
lncreosos/dacnt<l!es token to 
Stxplus/Defdl on the Prov31on 
of Services 

Dapree:latlon charged In th& 
year on non-current assets 
funded from copi'ol under 
statuto 
Conylng amount o f non current 
ossebsold 

Procaeds from t•• sole of PP&E. 
Investment properly and 
Intangible osselt 

Dlfterenco between flnan<:e 
costs calculated on on 
accounting bosb and finance 
costs calculated In occordonce 
with statutory requrements 

Not charges modo for 
rell"ement beneli1sln 
accordance with IAS ' 9 
Dnct revenue llnonclng of 
Capital Expendittxe 

Copilot Gtcnls and Donated 
Asselt Receivable and Applied 
In yecr 

Copilot Qonfs Receivable and 
Unapplied In yecr 

Rotes Ctow-Bock Reserve 

Adjustments In relation to Short-
term compensated absences 

Adjustments In relation to Lessor 
Atrongements 

londflll Regulations Reserve 
Adfuslmenl 

Provisions Discount Rate Reservo 
Adfustment 

Amounts not Included In the 
Comprehen•tve Income and 
Expenditure Malemenl but 
requited by statute to be 
Included when determining the 
Movement on the General fund 
Balance for the year 

Statutory Provision for fho 
&-ondng of C opltotlnvestment 

Employen QQntrlbullons payable 
to the NILGOSC and retroment 
benefits payable direct to 
penslonen 

4,974,816 

15,273,622 

8.612.078 

16~7.198 

20,248.438 14,003.845 30.051,()43 

4 122.115 

5,166.932 (411,613) 3.7' 0.502 

2Ml7.000 17,542.000 

(5.518.1991 (4.296.8591 

(2_5.41,228) (8,947,9631 

(30,6051 72.107 

26,160 599.&7 

217.9!1 

(5,876.183) (4,155.4121 

(13,941,000) (14.284,0001 

I • 
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Employee C o~ts and Member At! owe nccs · · · 
~faH Cc>ls 2017, 18 2016/17 

1 
So lanes end Wogas T 68.177.410 I 66.877,666 
Employen NIC 6.321,«7 6,247.353 
Employen Superannuation I 13.~9.<m l 12.908.309 

Total sJoU costs -- -- - - 87,937 866 86.033.328 -

Tho obovo stoH costs tnetude tho costs of tho voluntary redundanetas In 2017/18. Theso costs total £1.886.888 end 
are disdosod separately In Tablet 4 of the Remuneration Ropcrt. In addltlon, agoncy costs during the yocr 
amounted to£4.649.576 (16117 £4.470.9061 

The Counetrs cunent contrlbutlon rate to NllGOSC scheme Is 181. plus a 21. deficit recovery contribution. AI the lost 
actuorlot valuation, dated 31 March 4'0 16. the Fund's assets as a whola wete suffidenllo meet 961.{15/16 911.1 of 
the llobliltes ocaved up to lhal date. 

Average Number of Employees· where FTE repntSents lullllme equivalent employeas 

Average Number of Employcos 2017)18 2016/17 

Sttateclc Policy & RuotmU 661 681 
City Growtl! & R .. onoratlon 316 283 
l'ooplo & COmmunities 1.239 1.259 
l'lannln1 & Uconcln1 147 140 

1olal llumbcr -- 2 363 2.363 

2017. 18 2016117 

Ful~llme numberl employed 2.097 
PCJI-Ilmo numberl employod 340 

lolclllumbcr - · - ·--- 2.440 2 437 

Senior Employees Remuneration 2017.'18 2016/17 

- £ 
£!i0,001 to £60.000 50 49 
£60.001 to £70.000 10 "' £70.001 to£80.000 11 8 
£80.001 to £90.0000 2 -
£90.001 to £100,000 4 5 
£100,00110£110.000 2 2 
£110.001 to £14'0.000 - -
£U0,001 to £130,000 - -
£130,001 "'£140,000 1 1 

lctal tlumbcr so · 69 
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Public: corporations and trading funds 
Bodies exlemallo general government 
Em ee cor loons 59,587 88,920 
Revenue Gronts 
Copilot Gronts 
Interest Receivable 
Capital Debtors 
l oans and advances 
Finance lease debtors 
Trade debtors 736.633 789.382 
NIHE loans 340.810 417,760 
Other 
lmpoi'ment ot loons and receivables 

lolallOng :lcrm Dcblars 

b 

76,950 1,950.250 
58.110 66,471 

Revenue Grants 3.825,967 3,687.1 87 
Copilot Gronts 1,411.696 5.104.875 
Interest Receivable 
Copilot Debtors 
Value Added Tax 1,978.620 2.063.521 
Prepcyments 4,480,065 2.990.028 
finance lease debtors 26.160 
Other 3,192000 2.924,012 
Tradct rcteelvcbles 3.226,846 
Impairment loss - Trodct receivables 1417,4751 

lolol Shorf-Tcrrn Ocblors 

... 19.412.791~~- 24.126,400 

Cl 

Government Departments 1.673,415 1,635,116 
Other Covndls 17.826 14.290 
PubDc corporations and trading funds 
Bodies eldemol to general ovemment 
Roles clcwback 
VAT 350.000 1,917,292 
Rernunerotlon due to ctmpl ees 331,117 524.621 
Accumulated AbsenCes 1.344.230 1.374,835 
Receipts In advance 4.440.803 6,413.375 
Trodct creditors 
Other 22.142.658 20.117.533 

fiital S!iort Term Crcdilors . • .. . . .. 
b 

Pub1fc corporations and lrodlng funds 
Bodies external to general ovemment 
Rotes clcwbock 
Remuneration due to employees 
Accumulated Absences 
Receipts In advance 
Trade creditors 
Other 60.848 

.. :·: 



a Por!1clpcHon In lho Northom lr•lancllocal Govemmonl Oilcan' Pension Fvnd. 

As pct1 oft he tenns end conditions of employment of Its officers end ether employees. the Qoup olfen retirement benents. Although 
these benents wilt not actually be·poyobla until employees retire, the Councn has a commitment to maka the payments that need to 
be dl$closed at tha time !hot employees ecm ther future entitlement. 

The Qoup pcr11cipctes In !he Northern ~eland local Govemmenl Otfocen' Pension Fund administered by the Northern ~eland Lcccl 
Government Ofllcen' Superannuation Committee. Thb Is c funded scheme. meaning the! !he Qoup end employees pay ccnt~bullons 
Into a fund. cclculcted of a level Intended to balance the pension's lobiUIIes wllh Invest men! assets. 

b Transactions relaKng to retirement benents • Comprehensive Income and £Jrpendlture Slatemonl Charges: 

The Qoup recognises the cos! of relrement beneftts In the~ Cost of Sfii'Vices on Conllnulng Operations when they ore~ earned by 
employees. rot het then when the benefits ere eventually paid os pensions. 

However, !he chcrge~ the Group Is requhtd to make agolrut cfstrlct rotes Is baled on the cosh poyoble In the year, ond the real cost ot 
ret~e~nt benefits Is ravened out In the ~tments between accounllng basis & funding basis under regulallons l ne. In the 
Movement on Reserves Slclement. 

The tollowlng lronsocllons hove been made In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slcfeme~nt and the od]ustme~nls between 
cccounllng basis & funding basis under regutctlons ine, ln the Movement on Reserves Slalemenl dt.Wlg the year: 

Net cost o f services: 
Curranl sarvlc:e cost 
Pas! SOIVIce cost/(ga lnl 
Gains end lasses on setllemonts a curtallmenls 
No! operating expenditure: 

Movamenl In Reserves Sta lemenl: 

Revenal ot net charges mode fer relirement benefits In acc:adonce 
wllh !AS 19 end the Code 

Aclual omounl charged ogalnst the genercl fund balance fer pensions 
lntheyeor: 
Employars' cont~butlons payable to schama 

The servfca cost fogteS Include en cllcwcnce fer cdmlnlstrctlon expenses ot £257,000(16/17 £252.0CIJJ. 

i~cd in Olhf'r Ccmprchcnslvulncomc and Expcndltur~ 

'10.727.0CIJ 15.367.000 
599.0CIJ 119.0CIJ 

1819,000) 

3.091.000 2.87S.OCIJ 

2~.~17.000 17.~2.000 

124,417.0CIJI 11 7.~2.000) 

13.941.0CIJ 14.284.0CIJ . . . ... ! • •• 
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galns/lossr:Jcrlslng on llobllltle$ lrorn 

Belfast Oty Cooncll employs a building block appmoch ln det01mlnlng the rote at return on Fund assets. Hlstor1col marl:eh are studied 
and asseh with higher volatiUiy ore assumed to genorote higher returns corulstent with wtdoly accepted copltcl market prlnclptes. Tho 
assumed rote ol rett.rn on each cssol class Is cclevlated and the ovoroa o.rpocted rote ot return en assets so derived by aggregating 
tho expected ret1111 for occh asset class over tho actual asset al1ocotlcn tor tho fund at 31 March 2111a 

The actual retvrn on scheme assets in lhoyeorwas a gain at £27.599k (2016/17 gain ot £75,718k). 

fcJValucofPianAsscts -- -~- ... ~ .... ......,..-,-'l"!r --, ;>-~.-.r,:;- ~--~ 2017/18 ..,..~~ 2016/17.'~ 

ll.:f':o. _ --- ··-- _ .. _ . ____ :. __ :..__::.:..:; _t!~~ .• /'! . .,,;:.~-':"· • ""?.~· ~~Yt~L-__ ~-.'.::· t _ ~,_ _ ___! 
Equity lnvoslmonts .cQ.4,796.629 399.579.260 
Bonds 70.300.815 61,680.020 

56.694.206 56.316..540 
Cosh 25,512.393 13.945,048 

9,638.015 4.827,132 

. ' 

Tho Cound's sharo ol tho Net Pension UabDIIy (Included In 1h1t Balance Sheet): 



Surplust(dcllcil) In the Scheme "'·~(136,947,942) • .:. . (125 832.942) : 

The Babi!ltles show the undertyfng commitments that the aulhalty has In the long rvn to pay rel'remenl benefits. The total liability ol 
£136,9~7.9~2 has a substanllallmpacl on the net worth ol the Council os recorded In the Balance Sheet, ~ling In a redvclton of net 
worth ot 28" 

However, stolulcxy orrongements for funding the delldt mean that the financial position of the Council remoln.s healthy. The delldt on 
the Northern Ireland local Government Ofllcerl' Pension Fund will be mode good by Increased contributions over the remaining 
worl:lng tile cl employees, o~Se$$0d by the scheme actuary. 

Analyals at pro).cted amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year to 31 March 2019 

The total coniTibullons expected to be mode to the Northern Ireland local Government Ofllcen' Pension Fund by the Group In lhe 
yeorlo31 March20191s£1~.5661:. 

History olezperlence gains and losses 

The ocluoriol gains Identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2017/18 can be analysed Into the following cotegorle$, measured 
as a percentage of assets orlabllltlesat31 March 2018. 

e lasls tor esHmatlng assets and UabiUHes 

liabilities have been assessed on an ccluarfol balls using the pro/ecled unit method, on estimate of the pensions that will be payable In 
the fui\Ke years dependent on assumptions about mortally roles, salary levels, etc. The Group's Fund liabilities have been assessed by 
AON Hewltt lld, an Independent rrm at actuaries, estimates tor the Group Fund being based on data per1alnlng to the latest tun 
valuation at the scheme os at 31 March 2018. 

. . . . . 
:. ' ,1 .... <~ ~ 

3: ' ..:~ :.._, :a. ~~·-· ..::. 
Mortality assumpllonr. 
II.Ot>Qevltyaf 65 cutrent pensioners: Yean Years 
Men 23.3 23.2 
Women 25.9 25.B 

Longevity at 65 for tutvre perulonen: 
M&n 25.5 25.4 
Women 28.2 28.1 

Inflation/Pension InCrease Rat& 2.10% 2.cm. 
Salary Increase Rate 3.60% 3.50W. 
Discount Rate 2.60% 2.60% 
Pension accounts revaluation rote 2.10% 2.00% 

Take· UP of opllop to convert annual pttnslon lnlo reBremenllump sum: 
Service to~ 20()9 7~ 7SW. 
SetVIce po~t Ar:ri 2009 75$ 1SS 

I 
I 

w 



Pension AuumpHons Senslftvlty Analysis 

The pension figures disclosed In these ni'\Qnc:lal statements are sensitive to the assumptions used. 

The oppro>dmote Impact of changing key assumptions on the present value olthe funded defoned benefit obligation os ol31 March 
20181s set out below. 

In each case. only the assumption noted below Is altered; all other assumptions remain the some and o re summarised In the disclosure 

Eyndtd Ptnslon Scheme ltneDts 

Discount Rate AssumpHon 

Adjustment to discount rate +(1.1%p.a. ·0.1%p.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 671.514.000.00 697,649.000 
~change In the present value ol the total oblgation -·-~ ·-~ Projected Se<Vk:e cost 20.644.000.00 21.875.000 
Appn:udmate % change In profected setVk:e c:ost -2.~ 2.m 

Rate ol Gtnllal Increase In Sala~es 

Adjustment to salary lnaeose role +(1.1~.0. -O.l%p.a. 
Present value aft he total e>bllgaHon 688.251.000 680.700 
%change In the present value of the total obligation 0.~ -O.SO!f. 
f'rolecled service cost 21 .252.000 21.252.000 
Approximate% change In projeCted setVIc:e cost 0~ 0~ 

Raft of Increase la Pensions In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumplon 

Adjustment to pension inc:rct<»> rate +(1.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a. 
Present value ol the total obligation 693.816.000.00 675.232.000 
%change In the present value of the total obllgollon 1.~ -·~ Projected sesvlce cost 21.875.000.00 20.644.000 
APPfC)dmate %change tn ~ed service cost 2.~ ·2.~ 

Post leHrement MorlaUty Assumpfton 

Adjustment to mortality oge rollng assumptton• · 1 Year +1 Ytat 
Present value cl the total oblgatlon 704,714.000.00 664.310.000 
%change In the present value olthe total obligation 3~ -2.m 
Projected se<Vk:e cost 22.012,000.00 20.496.000 
Approldmate% change In_ Jl!Oiecled service cost 3.~ -3.~ 

• A m ling of + 1 yact: means that members ate assumed to follow the mortaYiy pottem ol the base table above far on Individual that Is I 
yeoroldl!lt' then !hot. 

MaJor catego~es ol plan assets as percentage ol total plan assets 

The Northem Ireland local Govemmonl otncers' Pension Fund's osseb consist al the following categorlos. by proportion ot the total 
assets hold: 

~ ~ -~~.J)1'_.~~~1:.. ~- _;.~ ~·:' 'l ~~ ..... ~~li ... ~.a·?'t~ 
I I 

~1.,1<1'; 
I • 

~' 
Equity Investments 71.~ 74~ 

Government Bonds 5.20'l 5 .4"" 
Corporate Bonds 7 .20'l 6.1"" 
Property 10~ 10.5'"' 
Cash 4.50% 2.6014 
Other 1.70J. 0.9"" 
Tolal 100.00~ lOO .Dim 

g Norlbem Ireland ClvD Service Pension Anangemenls 

The Northern Ireland Clvl SIIIVk:e Pension anongements ora unfunded multl-omployl!lt' defined benefit schemes but the Counctl ls 
unable to Identity Its shore of the underlying assets and PobiDtles. The most up to dale actuarial valuation was catried out as at31 
March 2012. This voluallon Is than reviewed by thoSchome Actuary and updated to reflect omen! conditions and rolled !otWatd la 
the reporllng dote ol the Oof Superannuation and Other AUowonces Resourt:e Accounts as at 31 March 2018. 

h As111ls OJid RabiRHes In rolaHon fg reHremenl boneftts of the Gas Pension fund 

Fair Value of Assets In pension scheme 
Present Value ol Oeftned Benefit Obligation 
. cl Assct{(Uablllfy) recognised on lhj:balancc sheet 

l2A 



G10 Other cash Wow dlscloJures 
a Analysis ol Adj111lmenb lo SUtplus/Deftcll on the Provision ol Services 

Adjuslrncnttos_urplus~rd~llonthcjlrovi.lan·of~~, .. ~~ 
u~;vic~s ro1 non ~a.sh '?cvcmc'!!s~_.,r ""'ic ~ • •· .., , •. " • 1 ,.._ "'1 
_ __ _ _ ----·--· • •••• ...: -~ • ,_. --=~-,_ Nolcs _,_ _! _.:!_2017118 . _____ • _ 2016/17 

£ £ 
Oeprodallon 15.273.621 1~.003 .845 

Impairment & downward ravaluatlons (& nan-solo ! 

derocognltlons) 4,974,816 16,().47.198 
Amortlsotlon (lncludod with depreciation abovo) . ' . 
(lnc:roase)/Doc:roasa In Stack (30.449) 789 
(lncrecse)/Oec:rease In Oobtors 4.677.102 8.872.116 
lncrease/(dacreosa) In Impairment provision far bed 36.777 (68.292) 
lncreasei(Dac:reoselln Crcdllat1 (1,688.267) (3.505,292) 
lncrecua/(Dac:reose) In Interest Cted!lat1 . . 
Payments to Nlt.GOSC 10.476.1XXl 3.258.!XX) 
Canyjng amount ol non-current OlSels sold 8,612.078 4.122.115 
AIC/WIP wr1tten off to Ne1 Cosl of Sarvlc:es . . 
Conlr1bullons to Other Reserves/Provisions 2.148.().45 7.213.852 
Movement In value or lnvestmanl properties-Included . 
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assels Account . (-400.1XXl) .. -,_-~- ... - _:- . --- . :)t•: .. . ":rj ~ .. . . 

Adjust lot llcms Included In lh~ nclsurplus or dcflell on~-r.,;:--;r?_~-~~V~~-~ 
the provision of SC!rvic~s lhdt arc lnvcstfng end ~·--~ J; .. t. • ,~ ·""'" • ~ • • 
financing acllviflc's .. . ~~.v + ~.,~.l j..~., --~_:,:a. · :". ~* -·- :.. • • ~ 

~- ·_ ~·_.:..-~,.~.:.:~""!:.-~~ ~#<f~; _ -.~~N~t~!i .':.--=-• ~~~~~_ 2o'i7)_1a~ · .. ~.-~ .. ·-~:.~ _ 2ot&f17 
£ £ 

Purchase or shorl-tenn (nol consldered la bet cash 276.792 3.070.139 
Proceeds from short-lenn not considered to bet cosh . -
Proc:~s from lhe solo of PP&E. Investment property 
and lnl~lble esse Is (3,445,1461 (411.613) 

Capital grants Included In 'Taxation & non-specific: 
grant Income" (2.541.2281 (8.947,963) 

,.L_~ .. •._,:.2JT~~;:-A~~.n.~09-'>821;::.~·(),"1!97""437f 

b Cosh and Cash Equlvalenb 

" 

• 

c:=-::·:-:"..~-~__:;:-~;~Nolcs~ !1L oL"'!:, '.:ti!I!' 2Dl6/J!. 
£ £ 

Cosh and Bank balances 5.990,997 6.052.247 
Shart Tenn Depo~ls (considered to be Cosh 8.SOO.IXXl S.IXXl.IXXl 
Short Term Investments (consk:tered to be Cosh . . 
Bank Overdraft . . 
i: --z.. _ ~ ~ _-:-:-;:.-:-~-~~~~~4!:~--...: r.:;4'1tf9"9/.i"~-.d-::-,;.:~ 11:os2.241; 

C_il;JiFlo NSii11P.nic_trt: .Q;-.~Iiii:f.•cF;~c-;~N~Ic_s~/18 , ~~--- 2016 ~17 
The cosh news from operating ocllvltles Include: 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

Purchase ol PP&E. Investment and Intangible 

Purchase ot Shart Term lnveslmenls (not consk:tered to 
be cosh equlvalenlsl 
Purc:hose ol Long Term Investments 
Other Payments far lnvesl Acttvllles 
Proceeds from the sole ot PP&E, lnvestmenl property 
and In tan ble assets 
Proceeds from Shart Tenn Investments (not considered 
to bet cosh equivalents) 
Proceeds from Long Teom lrweslments 
Cct>itol Gtonls and Conlrtbullons Received 
Other Raee!pls from Invest Activities 

Ncl Castiftows_from liiVCstriii)Acfivllics-

Ca~h frow(h_Om fli\Cncing AchVific~ 

Cash Raeelpls from Short and long Term Borrowing 
Other Raeelpts from Flnandn Activities 
Cosh ments tar the reduc:llan ol the outstondln 
Repayment of Short and Long T enn BorJOw(ng 
Other payments tar Anonc Ac:ttvllles 

£ £ 
126.243 1~.000 

. . 

2 1.297.412 55.991.322 

433,000 445,585 
1.682.860 1.60'1.816 

(3.445, 146) (411.613) 

(2.541.228) (8.947,963) 

' • ,; 

£ 
S.IXXl.IXXl 

[~,844.7361 (3.153.751) 

;., 

: 



Events after the reporting dale 

After the year end BWUH Umlted has commenced legal proceedings against o major suppller. The potential 
financial impoct is uncertain and no estimate can yet be mode. 

Date of authortsaHon for Issue 

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for Issue onZ7September 2018 

U& 


